Test Valley ™%

Borough Council

Notice of Meeting

Southern Area
Planning Committee

Date: Tuesday 4 June 2019

Time: 5.30 pm

Venue: Main Hall, Crosfield Hall, Broadwater Road, Romsey, Hampshire,
SO51 8GL

For further information or enquiries please contact:
Caroline Lovelock - 01264 368014
clovelock@testvalley.gov.uk

Legal and Democratic Service
Test Valley Borough Council,
Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road,
Andover, Hampshire,

SP10 3AJ
www.testvalley.gov.uk

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME

If members of the public wish to address the meeting they should notify the
Legal and Democratic Service at the Council's Beech Hurst office by noon
on the working day before the meeting.


http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Membership of Southern Area Planning Committee

MEMBER

Councillor A Finlay (Chairman)
Councillor M Hatley (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor N Anderdon
Councillor G Bailey

Councillor P Bundy

Councillor A Dowden
Councillor C Dowden
Councillor S Gidley

Councillor | Jeffrey

Councillor J Parker

Councillor R Rowles
Councillor A Ward

Councillor A Watts

WARD

Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams
Ampfield & Braishfield

Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams
Blackwater

Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams
Valley Park

North Baddesley

Romsey Abbey

Mid Test

Romsey Tadburn

Andover Winton

Mid Test

Andover Millway



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Southern Area Planning Committee
Tuesday 4 June 2019

AGENDA

The order of these items may change as a result of members

of the public wishing to speak

Apologies

Public Participation

Declarations of Interest

Urgent Items

Minutes of the meeting held on 23 April 2019
Information Notes

18/03235/FULLS - 10.12.2018

(OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: REFUSE)

SITE: Bargain Farm, Frogmore Lane, Nursling, SO16 0XS
NURSLING AND ROWNHAMS

CASE OFFICER: Mr Mark Staincliffe

19/00795/FULLS - 28.03.2019

(OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION)

SITE: Land Adjacent Mill Lane, Shefield English, Romsey,
SO51 6FN, SHERFIELD ENGLISH

CASE OFFICER: Miss Sarah Barter

Scheme of Delegations to Officers

To approve the Council’'s Scheme of Delegations to
Officers.

10 - 36

37 -48

49



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL

ITEM 6
SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

INFORMATION NOTES

Availability of Background Papers

Background papers may be inspected up to five working days before the date of the
Committee meeting and for four years thereafter. Requests to inspect the
background papers, most of which will be on the application file, should be made to
the case officer named in the report or to the Development Manager. Although there
is no legal provision for inspection of the application file before the report is placed
on the agenda for the meeting, an earlier inspection may be agreed on application to
the Head of Planning and Building.

Reasons for Committee Consideration

The majority of applications are determined by the Head of Planning and Building in
accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation which is set out in the Council’s
Constitution. However, some applications are determined at the Area Planning
Committees and this will happen if any of the following reasons apply:

e Applications which are contrary to the provisions of an approved or draft
development plan or other statement of approved planning policy where
adverse representations have been received and which is recommended
for approval.

e Applications (excluding notifications) where a Member requests in writing,
with reasons and within the stipulated time span, that they be submitted to
Committee. A Member can withdraw this request at any time prior to the
determination of the application to enable its determination under delegated
powers

e Applications submitted by or on behalf of the Council, or any company in
which the Council holds an interest, for its own developments except for the
approval of minor developments.

e To determine applications (excluding applications for advertisement consent,
listed building consent, and applications resulting from the withdrawal by
condition of domestic permitted development rights; Schedule 2, Part 1,
Classes B, C, D, E, F, G, and H of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or as amended) on which a
material planning objection(s) has been received in the stipulated time span
and which cannot be resolved by negotiation or through the imposition of
conditions and where the officer's recommendation is for approval, following
consultation with the Ward Members, the latter having the right to request
that the application be reported to Committee for decision.

Page 4



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Public Speaking at the Meeting

The Council has a public participation scheme, which invites members of the public,
Parish Council representatives and applicants to address the Committee on
applications. Full details of the scheme are available from Planning and Building
Services or from the Committee Administrator at the Council Offices, Beech Hurst,
Weyhill Road, Andover. Copies are usually sent to all those who have made
representations. Anyone wishing to speak must book with the Committee
Administrator within the stipulated time period otherwise they will not be allowed to
address the Committee.

Speakers are limited to a total of three minutes per item for Councillors on the Area
Committee who have personal interests or where a Member has pre-determined
his/her position on the relevant application, three minutes for the Parish Council,
three minutes for all objectors, three minutes for all supporters and three minutes for
the applicant/agent. Where there are multiple supporters or multiple objectors
wishing to speak the Chairman may limit individual speakers to less than three
minutes with a view to accommodating multiple speakers within the three minute
time limit. Speakers may be asked questions by the Members of the Committee, but
are not permitted to ask questions of others or to join in the debate. Speakers are
not permitted to circulate or display plans, photographs, illustrations or textual
material during the Committee meeting as any such material should be sent to the
Members and officers in advance of the meeting to allow them time to consider the
content.

Content of Officer’s Report

It should be noted that the Officer’s report will endeavour to include a summary of the
relevant site characteristics, site history, policy issues, consultations carried out with
both internal and external consultees and the public and then seek to make a
professional judgement as to whether permission should be granted. However, the
officer’s report will usually summarise many of the issues, particularly consultations
received from consultees and the public, and anyone wishing to see the full
response must ask to consult the application file.

Status of Officer’'s Recommendations and Committee’s Decisions

The recommendations contained in this report are made by the officers at the time
the report was prepared. A different recommendation may be made at the meeting
should circumstances change and the officer's recommendations may not be
accepted by the Committee.

In order to facilitate debate in relation to an application, the Chairman will move the
officer's recommendations in the report, which will be seconded by the Vice
Chairman. Motions are debated by the Committee in accordance with the Council’s
Rules of Procedure. A binding decision is made only when the Committee has
formally considered and voted in favour of a motion in relation to the application and,
pursuant to that resolution, the decision notice has subsequently been issued by the
Council.

Page 5



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Conditions and Reasons for Refusal

Suggested reasons for refusal and any conditions are set out in full in the officer’s
recommendation.

Officers or the Committee may add further reasons for refusal or conditions during
the Committee meeting and Members may choose to refuse an application
recommended for permission by the Officers or to permit an application
recommended for refusal. In all cases, clear reasons will be given, by whoever is
promoting the new condition or reason for refusal, to explain why the change is being
made.

Decisions subject to Completion of a Planning Obligation

For some applications, a resolution is passed to grant planning permission subject to
the completion of an appropriate planning obligation (often referred to as a Section
106 agreement). The obligation can restrict development or the use of the land,
require operations or activities to be carried out, require the land to be used in a
specified way or require payments to be made to the authority.

New developments will usually be required to contribute towards the infrastructure
required to serve a site and to cater for additional demand created by any new
development and its future occupants. Typically, such requirements include
contributions to community facilities, village halls, parks and play areas, playing
fields and improvements to roads, footpaths, cycleways and public transport.

Upon completion of the obligation, the Head of Planning and Building is delegated to
grant permission subject to the listed conditions. However, it should be noted that
the obligation usually has to be completed sufficiently in advance of the planning
application determination date to allow the application to be issued. If this does not
happen, the application may be refused for not resolving the issues required within
the timescale set to deal with the application.

Deferred Applications
Applications may not be decided at the meeting for a number of reasons as follows:

* The applicant may choose to withdraw the application. No further action
would be taken on that proposal and the file is closed.

* Officers may recommend deferral because the information requested or
amended plans have not been approved or there is insufficient time for
consultation on amendments.

* The Committee may resolve to seek additional information or amendments.

* The Committee may resolve to visit the site to assess the effect of the

proposal on matters that are not clear from the plans or from the report.
These site visits are not public meetings.

Page 6



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Visual Display of Plans and Photographs

Plans are included in the officers’ reports in order to identify the site and its
surroundings. The location plan will normally be the most up-to-date available from
Ordnance Survey and to scale. The other plans are not a complete copy of the
application plans and may not be to scale, particularly when they have been reduced
from large size paper plans. If further information is needed or these plans are
unclear please refer to the submitted application in the reception areas in Beech
Hurst, Andover or the Former Magistrates Court office, Romsey. Plans displayed at
the meeting to assist the Members may include material additional to the written
reports.

Photographs are used to illustrate particular points on most of the items and the
officers usually take these. Photographs submitted in advance by applicants or
objectors may be used at the discretion of the officers.

Human Rights

The European Convention on Human Rights” (‘ECHR”) was brought into English
Law, via the Human Rights Act 1998 (“HRA”), as from October 2000.

The HRA introduces an obligation on the Council to act consistently with the ECHR.
There are 2 Convention Rights likely to be most relevant to Planning Decisions:

* Article 1 of the 1st Protocol - The Right to the Enjoyment of Property.

* Article 8 - Right for Respect for Home, Privacy and Family Life.

It is important to note that these types of right are not unlimited - although in
accordance with the EU concept of “proportionality”, any interference with these
rights must be sanctioned by Law (e.g. by the Town & Country Planning Acts) and
must go no further than necessary.

Essentially, private interests must be weighed against the wider public interest and
against competing private interests. Such a balancing exercise is already implicit in
the decision making processes of the Committee. However, Members must
specifically bear Human Rights issues in mind when reaching decisions on all
planning applications and enforcement action.

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC)
The Council has a duty under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act
2006 as follows: "every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard,

so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of
conserving biodiversity".

Page 7



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

It is considered that this duty has been properly addressed within the process
leading up to the formulation of the policies in the Revised Local Plan. Further
regard is had in relation to specific planning applications through completion of the
biodiversity checklists for validation, scoping and/or submission of Environmental
Statements and any statutory consultations with relevant conservation bodies on
biodiversity aspects of the proposals. Provided any recommendations arising from
these processes are conditioned as part of any grant of planning permission (or
included in reasons for refusal of any planning application) then the duty to ensure
that biodiversity interest has been conserved, as far as practically possible, will be
considered to have been met.

Other Legislation

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
determination of applications be made in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan for the
Borough comprises the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016), and ‘made’
Neighbourhood Plans. Material considerations are defined by Case Law and
includes, amongst other things, draft Development Plan Documents (DPD),
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and other relevant guidance including
Development Briefs, Government advice, amenity considerations, crime and
community safety, traffic generation and safety.

On the 19" February 2019 the Government published a revised National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF). The revised NPPF replaced and superseded the previous
NPPF published in 2018. The revised NPPF is a material consideration in planning
decisions.

So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
revised NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. Decisions
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. This does not
change the statutory status of the development plan as a starting point for decision
making. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Where a planning application conflicts with an up to date
development plan, permission should not usually be granted. Local planning
authorities may take decisions which depart from an up to date development plan,
but only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should
not be followed.

For decision-taking, applying the presumption in favour of sustainable development
means:

e Approving development proposals that accord with an up to date development
plan without delay; or

e Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which
are most important for determining the application are out of date, granting
permission unless:

Page 8



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

o The application of policies in the revised NPPF that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or

o Any adverse impact of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the
revised NPPF when taken as a whole.

Existing Local Plan policies should not be considered out of date because they were
adopted prior to the publication of the revised NPPF. Due weight should be given to
them, according to their degree of consistency with the revised NPPF (the closer the
policies in the Local Plan to the policies in the revised NPPF, the greater the weight
that may be given).

Page 9



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

ITEM 7

APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
APPLICANT

SITE

PROPOSAL

AMENDMENTS

CASE OFFICER

18/03235/FULLS

FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH

10.12.2018

Hamberley Development Ltd

Bargain Farm, Frogmore Lane, Nursling, SO16 0XS,
NURSLING AND ROWNHAMS

Erection of a care home scheme comprising of an 80
bedroom nursing home to provide nursing, personal
and dementia care and a 61 bedroom nursing home
for people with neurological conditions with access
and parking

Transport Statement. 18.12.18

Policy Rebuttal; Contaminated Land further report;
Marketing Update 30.01.19;

Revised Plans & elevations; Tree Pit details; Structure
planting plan; landscape layout; Needs Assessment
rebuttal; Marketing update; Highways Technical Note;
Landscape Rebuttal; Drainage plans and appendices;
site sections; 15.18.02.19

Design Review Panel Rebuttal; Artists Impressions;
Gable Study; Shadow Analysis; Marketing Update,
03.05.19.

Mr Mark Staincliffe

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0
11

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

INTRODUCTION

The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee in
accordance with the Member and Officer Interests Protocol.

SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION

The application site lies in the countryside and comprises of 1.4 Ha of
undeveloped agricultural land towards the Southern edge of the Borough of Test
Valley and within the Parish of Nursling.

The site is relatively flat, with two storey residential development to the north

and west of the site and The David Lloyd Tennis Centre to the Northeast of the
site. The Centre is elevated above the application site, with mature landscaping
between it and the application site which has the effect of screening the Centre

from the site.

The boundary to Southampton City Council cuts across the open fields in a west
to east direction, with fields to the south of the application site in the
administrative area of Southampton City Council.

Page 10



2.4

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Open fields lie to the Southwest of the application site, (south of the new
residential estate at Bargain Farm). These open fields, with the application site,
combine to form the allocated employment site referred to in Policy LE5: Land at
Bargain Farm, Nursling of the RLP. This employment allocation is specifically
allocated for B1 and B2 employment uses. A small southern section of the
application site is also included in the allocated site referred to in policy T3 in the
RLP. This allocation is for a Park and Ride Facility.

PROPOSAL

The proposal comprises the erection of two separate blocks providing for an 80
bedroom nursing home to accommodate nursing, personal and dementia care in
one block and a 61 bedroom nursing home for people with neurological
conditions in the second block. The proposal also includes a new highway
access from Frogmore Lane, landscaping and parking for 105 cars and 10
bicycles.

The design comprises 2x 3 storey buildings, both in a vaguely ‘H’ form, in a
north/south layout. Apexes project from elevations at set intervals and square
bay windows or balconies are provided at the four northern ends. The shared
access area between the buildings provides for servicing of the buildings and
this is set behind a fence. A landscaping scheme has been submitted with the
application to provide formal amenity areas and structural landscaping towards
the perimeter of the site.

The application was accompanied by the following documents:
Travel Plan and Transport Statement;
Alternative Site Assessment Report;
Aboricultural Impact Assessment;
Drainage Strategy;

Ecological Appraisal,

Employment Land Report;

Flood Risk Assessment;

Ground Investigation;

Heritage Statement;

Landscape Visual Impact Assessment;
Market Report;

Planning Needs Assessment;

The submitted plans and supporting technical information sought to justify why
development of the site for the uses proposed was appropriate and led to a
policy compliant development.

The application documentation puts forward the case that though the site is not
allocated within the RLP for the uses proposed, the proposal does accord with
the development plan when read as a whole. Particular emphasis is placed on
Policy LE10 and Policy LES of the RLP and the employment allocation at the
site and the fact that this policy allows alternative uses to be permitted on
allocated employment sites where specific criteria are met.

Page 11



3.6

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.0
5.1

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

The applicant is also of the view that the proposal complies with the relevant
policies in relation to detailed matters such as access, landscape, design,
heritage and biodiversity. Taking these matters and the other benefits of the
scheme, the applicant is of the view that permission should be granted.

HISTORY

16/03171/FULLS- Creation of a new access from Frogmore Lane and access
spur road into Bargain Farm to serve future development. Withdrawn
12.07.2017.

17/01773/SCRS Screening opinion under the Town and Country Planning
(Environment Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 - Erection of a care
scheme comprising 80 bed care home and 61 bed rehabilitation centre, access
and parking. EIA not required 21.08.2017.

17/01741/FULLS- Erection of a care scheme comprises an 80 bed Care Home
providing nursing and dementia care and a 61 bed Neuro Rehabilitation Centre
for people suffering with severe neurological conditions requiring long term
support as well as respite or day care, together with access and parking
provisions. Withdrawn 28.09.2017.

17/01600/FULLS- Creation of a new access from Frogmore Lane and access
spur road into Bargain Farm. Refused 08.02.2018 for the following reason:

The proposed vehicular access onto Frogmore Lane represents unjustified
development in the countryside in that it has not been demonstrated that it is
essential for the development to be located the countryside. The proposal
therefore is contrary to Policy COMO02(b) of the Test Valley Borough Revised
Local Plan (2016).

18/01484/FULLS Creation of a new access from Frogmore Lane and access
spur road into Bargain Farm. Refused 06.08.2018 for the following reason.

The proposed vehicular access onto Frogmore Lane represents unjustified
development in the countryside in that it has not been demonstrated that it is
essential for the development to be located the countryside. The proposal
therefore is contrary to Policy COMO02(b) of the Test Valley Borough Revised
Local Plan (2016).

CONSULTATIONS

Planning Policy: Comment. (Summarised)

The Local Plan was adopted by the Council on 27 January 2016.

* Policy SD1 — sustainable development. There are no plan policies specific to
the development proposed, although there are relevant and up to date policies
which apply to the site (Policy LE5) and retention of employment sites (Policy
LE10). The first part of the policy is therefore not relevant as the proposed
development does not accord with the Local Plan. The second part of the
policy is not engaged, as the relevant policies are not out of date.

Page 12



5.2

5.3

5.4

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Justification for each of the two elements of the care home development:
specialist neurological care facility and nursing home, as an overriding need (to
address the conflict with Policy LE5 and Policy LE10 unless this is satisfied).

* Policy LES — the site is allocated for Class B1 and Class B2 uses. (2ha). The
proposed development would be for an alternative use (Class C2) which is
contrary to this allocation. Sufficient justification is therefore required in order
to demonstrate a departure from this policy.

*Policy LE10 — retention of employment land. Alternative use will be permitted
provided that it conforms to criteria, including that it is no longer required for
economic development needs of the area, and would not have a detrimental
impact on the operation of the remaining occupiers of the site.

The policy presumption (Policy LE10) is that employment land be retained as
such, and the site is allocated to meet the requirement for employment land
over the plan period (to 2029) and as an allocation it is considered to be an
existing employment site. Sufficient justification is therefore required in order to
demonstrate a departure from this policy: material considerations in this
respect would include overriding need and economic and employment
benefits.

It is considered that the Park & Ride allocation, TVBRLP policy T3, is still
required. This requires securing via a S.106 Agreement.

Appeal matters.

The Local Plan was found sound and recent PlIns decisions and High Court
challenge found that land at Adanac for class B1 use, in respect of TVBRLP
policy LE6 was upheld. An appeal for a hospital at Adanac on allocated B1
land was allowed by PIns in 2011.

Southampton City Council: Objection

Lack of full detailed plan; staffing overall numbers suggested is 190 persons, in
a shift pattern- parking facilities & trip generation questioned; [no staff hand
over included in numbers where duplicate staff numbers required]; cumulative
impact with regards Brownhill Way; design ensures overshadowing of amenity
space for the majority of the day considered detrimental to occupants.

Design Review Panel: Objection

Panel response 2.

Detailing: Amended entrance detailing insufficient to enhance the approach to
either building. The proposed gabling is considered a critical element of the
concept of the design, requiring detailing currently lacking.

Scale: Sections are required to clarify levels. Potential height reduction to be
considered.

Layout and orientation: there is a fundamental issue with the position and
arrangement of the buildings on site. The car park receives the sunlight leaving
some rooms potentially devoid of sunlight.

Greater contextual analysis required. The present scheme does not respond to
its context. It is essential that a full site analysis is undertaken. No initial site
constraints or contextual analysis were presented.

Page 13



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Panel response 1.

Featureless sense of arrival, confusing entrances to buildings; detailing is
confused; cross sections required with regards rooflines, ridges and eaves
heights & adjacent existing development; could a basement be utilised to
provide accommodation for utilities and decrease building scale and massing
above ground?

Conservation & Design Officer: Objection. (Summarised).

Proposed screening would not provide a substantial screen for the listed farm
house in relation to the proposed development, with potential further harmful
impact arising for its setting & therefore the significance of the listed building.
No site sections or street elevations which include the heritage assets;
Encouragement given for use of natural materials and high quality materials

Highways England: No objection.

Southampton City Clinical Commissioning Group: Comments. As an
application which abuts Southampton City land, it has direct implications for
the health and care services of the City. The proposal would have benefits:-
increased nursing home beds for complex clients; for which there is an
acknowledged need and for which a number of developments are planned to
increase capacity; there are related concerns in relation to both primary care
services and scarce clinical and care staff.

HCC Highways: No objection subject to conditions and a contribution towards
a Traffic Regulation Order to restrict parking on and in the vicinity of Frogmore
Lane.

Local Lead Flood Authority: No objection.

Southern Water: No objection subject to a condition.

Tree Officer: Comment.

Landscape Officer: Comment. (Summarised)

Proximity of large native trees to the development and existing development;
lack of information in the LVIA with regards the existing adjacent residential
development; lack of shadow diagrams; lack of landscaped space appropriate
to a development of this scale/use.

Natural England: No response.

HCC Ecologist: No objection. Given the scale of the development it is
recommended that Natural England is consulted.

Environmental Protection Team: Comment: Monitoring results required for
ground gas due to proximity to Landfill.

Page 14



6.0
6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.0
7.1

7.2

7.3

8.0
8.1

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

REPRESENTATIONS Expired 10.04.2019

Nursling Parish Council: Objection. (Summarised).

Contrary to the Local Plan allocation. Similar to the previous application but on a
larger footprint and closer to houses on Bargain Close. Access from Frogmore
Lane has been previously refused.

Southampton University Hospital NHS (UHS NHS): (Summarised).
In principle the scheme is supported subject to reservations in respect of scarce
resources in particular scarce existing NHS staff.

Objections: Lordshill Health Centre Primary Care Centre — the local GP
Practise does not have the capacity for such a development.

Further objections have been received from occupants of 1,3 & 4 Bargain
Close, 47 Gover Road, Southampton, and 18 Tate Mews, Tate Road, Old
Redbridge.

Objections raised are in respect of: overlooking; scale and bulk result in loss of
light, trees and wildlife; noise; highways impacts; design; amenity; in-
combination impacts arising from other current applications related to the site;
infrastructure costs; overlooking.

Support: Dr CA Eynon, Whiteparish. Consultant in Neurosciences Intensive
Care to UHS.

POLICY
Government Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP)

COM2 (Settlement Hierarchy), LE5 (Land at Bargain Farm, Nursling),

LE10 (Retention of employment Land and Strategic Employment Sites),

LE17 (Employment sites in the countryside), T1 (Managing Movement),

T2 (Parking Standards), T3 (Park and Ride at Bargain Farm, Nursling)

E1 (High quality development in the Borough), E2 (Protect, conserve and
enhance the landscape character of the Borough), E5 (Biodiversity), E7 (Water
Management), E8 (Pollution), E9 (Heritage), LHW4 (Amenity)

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions
New Forest SPA Mitigation- Interim Framework
Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The main planning considerations are:
e Principle of the development
e Loss of employment land
e Amenity of Existing Residents

Page 15



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Highways impacts
Contaminated Land
Ecology

Design

Landscape

Heritage impacts
Trees

¢ Flooding and Drainage
e Highways

Principle of Development

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires

that the determination of planning applications must be made in accordance

with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

COM2 presents the way the settlements, classified in the settlement hierarchy,
will develop in the future. COM2 seeks to promote a sustainable pattern of
development and sets out how the site identification process for strategic sites
was undertaken. As a matter of fact the site is an allocation within the RLP
Policy LE5 (Land at Bargain Farm, Nursling). Subject to compliance with this
policy and the RLP as a whole, development can be supported.

The policy creates a presumption in favour of sustainable development within
the defined limits of development and on allocated sites, with housing and
residential institutions outside these limits of development only being brought
forward subject to a number of exceptions which do not apply to this
application.

In relation to limits of development, the RLP Inspector supported these in order
to provide plan-led clarity, and saw no reason to extend these further due to
the level of committed developments and proposed allocations set out in the
RLP.

The applicant suggests that the proposal can be supported by virtue of Policy
LE10 of the RLP as the land is no longer required to meet economic
development needs. This position is not accepted and is examined in detail
later in the report.

As an allocated employment site in the countryside, the development proposal
is assessed under COM2a) and Policy LE10. RLP Policy LE10 states that
employment land which has not yet been fully implemented, can be developed
for alternative uses provided that the land is no longer required to meet the
economic needs of the area.

Loss of Employment Land

RLP Policy LE5S requires the site to provide 2 Ha of employment land for B1 &
B2 purposes. An area of 2017m? in the Northern portion of the allocation has
been developed for housing and was permitted by planning application
14/00138/FULLS.

Page 16



8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

The remainder of the application site does not benefit from any extant
permissions though planning application 19/00374/OUTS (Development of a
park and ride, B1 and B2 uses; hospital, nursing home and residential
education and training centre uses (C2); clinic, health centre, consulting room,
day centre and non-residential education and training centre, retail and
restaurant and cafe (Al and A3) uses; storage and distribution (B8) uses) has
been submitted to the Council for the remainder of the allocation and is
pending consideration.

As the application is not for B1 or B2 use the proposal is not in accordance
with the requirements of RLP Policy LES.

In order to overcome the policy conflict with RLP Policy LES the applicants are
seeking to justify the proposal through RLP Policy LE10 a) and have
undertaken a marketing exercise. This exercise attempts to demonstrate that
for the last 6 months, there has been insufficient demand for employment use
on the site and that the land should be released for alternative uses.

The content of the report is noted. However, the recently submitted application
on the adjacent site would indicate that there is a market for B1 and B2 units in
the locality. Furthermore, there is no extant planning permission in place for B1
or B2 uses on the site, because the earlier consent has expired, which is a
matter that may have discouraged businesses expressing an interest in the
site.

It is also important to note that the Local Plan was only recently adopted and
its purpose is to plan for development until 2029. During the examination of the
local plan examining Inspector supported the Council’s position on job creation
and need for employment floor space. Not withstanding the marketing
information provided it is considered that there are factors, as discussed
above, that demonstrate the release of this land at such an early time in the
plan period would seriously undermine the strategic employment provision of
the RLP. For the reasons set out above the planning application is considered
to conflict with RLP policy LE10.

Amenity of Existing Residents

Policy LHW4 of the RLP sets a number of criteria against which development
proposals will be assessed in order to safeguard the amenity of existing and
future residents, particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and any
adverse impact in terms of loss of daylight/sunlight.

Overlooking
In terms of the potential for overlooking and loss of privacy to the existing

properties in Bargain Close, the layout provides a separation distance of less
than 20m (from the rear wall of Number 1 to the rear wall of the proposed
Specialist Care Unit) taking into consideration the size (3 stories in height) and
the use of the proposed accommodation it is considered that this will result in
significant adverse harm to the residential amenities of existing properties in
Bargain Close.

Page 17



8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

8.21

8.22

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

It is accepted that the separation distance increases to 23 meters for the
occupant’s of number 3 but the scale of the proposal and number of windows
overlooking these properties is also considered to be harmful to their
residential amenities and this increased distance is not sufficient to over come
the harm identified. Furthermore, the proposal will directly overlook the private
amenity space for these properties, which will also result in harm.

The supporting documentation places emphasis on the type of accommodation
being provided and the nature of it being greatly different to a C3 unit due to
the level of care provided. This is acknowledged, but it doesn’t preclude
overlooking or perceived overlooking from visitors, staff or occupants.
Furthermore, the nature of the care is more likely to result in the use and
activity in rooms at greater frequency and during all hours.

For the reasons set out above it is considered that by virtue of the size and
scale of the proposal and the proximity of proposed windows to the rear
elevations of 1-5 Bargain Close will result in loss of residential amenity to these
properties and thereby conflict with policy LHW4 of the RLP. It is also noted
that there are discrepancies in the plans showing the length of gardens of
numbers 1-5 Bargain Close that purport to show the proposed building further
away from the dwellings than that described above.

Overbearing Impact

The proposed Specialist Care Unit will be 6m from the rear boundary fence of
1 Bargain Close and 14m from the rear fence of number 5. Taking into
consideration that this proposed block is a continuous, unbroken monolithic
block measuring 53m in length and between 12 and 12.5m in height it is
considered to have a significant overbearing impact on 1-5 Bargain Close.

Not only will the proposal harm the residents in terms of use of their gardens
but it is also considered to be harmful and overbearing from these properties
habitable rooms as well. The outlook from the gardens and rooms will be
oppressive and will result in extremely poor living conditions for the inhabitants
of these properties by virtue of a significant sense of enclosure. For this reason
the development is considered to conflict with policy LHW4 of the RLP.

Heritage Impacts

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 places a statutory duty upon decision makers to have special regard to
the desirability of preserving the setting of listed buildings.

The NPPF advises that heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource and
should be conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance. Paragraph
193 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight
should be given to the asset’s conservation. The more important the asset, the
greater the weight should be. Significance can be harmed by development
within its setting.

Page 18



8.23

8.24

8.25

8.26

8.27

8.28

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

The heritage statement submitted with the application indicates that some
views of the proposal from the listed building (Bargain Farmhouse) will be
possible, this observation is not disputed.

A comparison between the application submission, the existing property and
the recently built out Bargain Close shows the significantly greater height of the
proposed development in comparison with the heritage asset and the recently
constructed properties. The sheer scale of the proposal (three stories and a
sizeable roof) is at odds with the modest scale of the listed building.

A planning permission for residential development in close proximity to Bargain
Farmhouse, involving the construction of new residential units, has been
implemented and nearing completion. It is considered that this is a sympathetic
approach to development in close proximity to a listed building and has
ensured that it can still be fully appreciated within the public domain. Although
the site has, inevitably, taken on a more domestic ‘feel’, the impact upon the
immediate area, and thus the setting of the listed buildings is considerably less
than that of the application scheme, which would introduce a substantial,
poorly designed block in close proximity to a heritage asset incorporating
materials which are at odds with the character of the area.

Currently the listed house is seen in the context of views over the fields and
the recently approved residential development has retained that to some
extent. As proposed, the new building will fill this view, and will be seen above
the new housing in Bargain Close. The landscaping would not provide
adequate screening and, given the proximity of the proposed building to the
boundary at this North-western point, the listed house would no longer have
any form of rural setting and the street scene would be somewhat dominated
by this structure.

A distinction must be made between the impact that the housing in Bargain
Close has had on the setting, and therefore its significance, and the potential
further harmful impact of a development of the scale and proximity proposed in
this application. It is acknowledged that the land is allocated in the RLP for
employment uses (B1/B2) and so it is reasonable to anticipate some change to
the setting of the Listed Building will arise in the future. The issue in relation to
this scheme is that the proposal does not accord with the RLP in terms of
anticipated uses and the sheer scale and relationship with the Listed Building
is harmful. The harm caused by the development proposed is real and is
entirely avoidable.

For the reasons set out above, less than substantial harm would be caused to
this heritage asset. Paragraph 195 of the NPPF confirms that where a
development proposal would lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of the proposal. Policy E9 of the RLP is consistent
with this requirement.

Page 19



8.29

8.30

8.31

8.32

8.33

8.34

8.35

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

This harm could easily be avoided through the redesign of the proposal and
changing the siting within the site and its scale. The benefits in providing a
care home and nursing home are noted but are not considered to be a public
benefit that would out weigh the harm identified.

Were the principle of development to be considered acceptable on this
accommodation could be provided without resulting in harm to a heritage asset
therefore the public benefits put forward do not outweigh the harm identified
and thus contrary to the NPPF and Policy E9 of the RLP. This is a matter that
must weigh against the proposal in the planning balance.

Contaminated Land

Further evidence has been provided by the applicant to demonstrate that gas
protection measures were not required. The monitoring results contained
within the amended contaminated land report conclude that the site can be
classified as Low Risk, according to the (now revised) British Standard 8485,
and that gas protection is not required. Taking into consideration the content of
the report it is concluded that there is no conflict with Policy E8 of the RLP.

Ecology

The development will result in a net increase in C class (residential type)
accommodation within 13.6km of the New Forest Special Protection Area
(SPA) and within 5.6km of the Solent and Southampton Water SPA. To
address this issue, Test Valley Borough Council has adopted a strategy
whereby a scale of developer contributions has been agreed that would fund
the delivery of measures to address these issues.

Taking into consideration the nature of the accommodation provided further
clarification is being sought from the County Ecologist as to whether these
payments are required and would meet the relevant CIL tests. Members will be
updated on this matter via an Update Paper prior to the Southern Area
Planning Committee meeting.

Design

The design of the proposal is addressed within RLP Policy E1, which requires
development to integrate, respect and complement the character of the area,
not detract from the dominance of key landmark buildings, whilst also laid out
to provide connectivity between spaces, whilst respecting the character of the
surrounding area and neighbouring uses. Development will not be permitted if
it is of poor design and fails to improve the character, function and quality of
the area.

The approach adopted by the applicant is disappointing and appears to have

not adequately assessed the site constraints, opportunities and character of
the area in reaching the design solution proposed.

Page 20



8.36

8.37

8.38

8.39

8.40

8.41

8.42

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

The site layout and orientation is ill-conceived . The car park occupies the
southern, sunnier location, with the accommodation wings of nursing homes to
the north, due to the orientation of the site and sheer size and scale of the
proposed development it will result in heavily shaded living environment for
habitable rooms and the amenity space provided to the units. Furthermore the
reorientation/redesign of the units is likely to take built development away from
the listed building and thus reducing the harm to its setting.

Moving onto the height of the building and proximity to adjoining properties this
is clearly out of context with the site and immediate neighbouring uses. The
scale of the buildings are imposing and out of scale with the adjacent dwellings
at Bargain Farm and the surrounding area. This is further compounded by the
confused pallet of materials proposed and the lack of consideration towards
the sensitivities of the site and use of appropriate materials.. As such, it is
considered that the proposal is in conflict with RLP Policy E1.

Landscape

Landscape matters are addressed in terms of RLP Policy E2, which requires
developments to protect, conserve and enhance the landscape character of
the Borough.

The submitted arboricultural impact assessment, and landscape visual impact
assessment indicate the provision of quantities of landscaping and planting,
however they are lacking in certain respects. Drain runs and
manholes/inspection chambers are clearly shown within rooting zones and cell
structures for trees in hard landscaping which is likely to cause conflict and
may later necessitate tree removal which would be detrimental to the scheme.
Attenuation tanks are also shown where tree rooting cell areas are and
therefore likely to cause conflict.

It is not considered that the proposal is accompanied by a landscaping
scheme required to help a building of this size integrate easily into the
environment.

As set out earlier in the report, the proposed units are large monolithic blocks
lacking in any design quality, articulation, detailing or local distinctiveness. Due
to the shear size and scale of the units it is unlikely that landscaping in the
short or medium terms will assist in assimilating the development into the local
landscape. Though the quality of the landscaping in isolation may be
acceptable it is not appropriate for the development proposed. For the reasons
set out above it is considered that the proposal will result in harm to the
character and appearance of the area and thus conflict with RLP Policy E2.

Trees

A large, mature and visually significant Oak is located off site but close to the
northern corner of site. This represents the only arboricultural constraint with
regard to the development. The extent of new tree planting as proposed,
including landscape the buffer to north and east, tree and hedge planting
around other margins and proposed tree planting within parking areas, is
supported in principle.

Page 21



8.43

8.44

8.45

8.46

8.47

8.48

8.49

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Discrepancies still exists with regard to proposed tree planting between that
shown upon the Harrisirwin Proposed Site Plan 2313 HIA ZZ DR A 0102 rev
P6 15.2.19 and that on the TPM landscapes Tree Pit Details plan 3155 301
14.02.19 revision A. The former is a preferable scheme allowing for more
comprehensive planting program. Were the application to be supported this
matter could be controlled by condition. There is therefore no concern, subject
to conditions with regards to tree protection and the scope of the proposed tree
planting. In this regard only the development is considered to conform with
RLP Policy E2.

Flooding and Drainage

During the consideration of the application additional evidence and details
have been submitted by the applicant to demonstrate that the proposal does
not have an adverse impact on surface water drainage and localised flooding.
Having considered the revised information officers are satisfied that the
proposal would comply with Policy E7 of the RLP and suitable conditions could
be added to control the final detailed design of the drainage.

Highways
Highways matters are assessed within RLP Policies T1 Managing Movement,
T2 Parking Standards and T3 Park and Ride at Bargain Farm, Nursling.

Parking Provision

Adopted parking standards would dictate a minimum of 1 space per member of
staff plus 1 space per 4 units plus an additional 1 space per 5 units for visitors.
However, the submitted application makes a case that the spaces allocated
per units is not relevant to this application as the residents/patients at the care
facility would not have access to a car on-site. This presumably is due to the
nature of their respective care needs.

The submitted application makes the case that it is unreasonable to provide 1
space per member of staff due to the nature of shift pattern working and due to
the case, that not every member of staff would drive to and from the
development and require a car parking space in this regard. The total parking
provision is proposed at a level of 105 spaces which includes 10 dedicated
disabled bays plus the addition of 1 mini-bus parking bay. This results in a
provision of 28 spaces for visitors and 77 spaces for staff plus one mini-bus
parking bay. In addition, 20 covered cycle spaces are proposed.

In order to assess the likely level of parking demand from staff, the submitted
application utilises 2011 travel to work census data for the Nursling Hillyfields
area. This data would suggest that 78.2% of persons utilise a private car for
travelling to/from work. In addition the peak levels of staffing would be at times
when local bus services are running.

The result of which would suggest a peak parking accumulation for staff of 75

spaces. This does not take into account any Travel Plan measures that may be
presented with the accompanying Travel Plan.

Page 22



8.50

8.51

8.52

8.53

8.54

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Though this falls short of the Council’s adopted standards a flexible approach
can be taken if justification is provided. It is considered that the above
represents a sufficiently robust assessment of the likely parking demand and
as such the provision of 105 spaces in total would not lead to any material
parking demand issues. Therefore it is considered that the level of parking
provided is adequate for the site specific circumstances and there is no conflict
with RLP Policy T2.

Highway Access

Highways access is assessed within RLP policy T1, which requires
development to be safe, attractive, in character, functional and accessible,
without adverse impacts on function, safety or character of and accessibility to
the local and strategic highways network.

The application is submitted with a Travel Plan and Transport Statement,
(September 2018) and a Supplementary Technical Note, (February 2019),
which indicate that the proposed development will have a negligible impact on
the Frogmore Lane/Brownhill Lane junction.

Highways impacts arising from the proposed development are considered in
respect of roads and footways under the jurisdiction of Hampshire Highways,
and Southampton City Council. The applicant has accepted an in-principle
provision of a contribution towards a Traffic Regulation Order to restrict parking
on Frogmore Lane. This would be secured via a legal agreement that has not
been signed to date.

The application site contains 105 car parking spaces, with 190 staff proposed,
123 of which will be on site at any one time. Trip rates examples as provided
by the submitted data, derive from developments without the large car park
and staffing combination required of the proposal site. These trip rates are
therefore considered rather low.

In addition, peak traffic assessment times are expressed more briefly than
expected, only from 08:00 to 09:00. With staff hand over at 07:00, the
submitted traffic flow projections would completely omit peak on site traffic
flows and some off site rush hour traffic. Peak hour traffic is from 07:00 to
09:30 and 16:00 to 18:30. The response from Southampton City Council also
indicates that the Frogmore Lane/Brownhill Way junction is at or above
capacity already. Therefore any additional trips would have a significant and
cumulative impact. In addition to these concerns with regards to vehicular
traffic, pedestrian access provision appears to lack integration or coordination
with the existing pedestrian movement. Pedestrians from Lower Brownhill
Road would have to criss-cross between the pedestrian island, Frogmore Lane
and back again. This is considered outside the pedestrian desire line.

Page 23



8.55

8.56

9.0
9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Due to the lack of appropriate traffic impact data, lack of an agreed S.106
agreement in respect of the required Traffic Regulation Order and lack of
functional pedestrian access to the site, the proposed development has not
addressed the requirements of highways safety and in-combination impacts of
the development with adjacent highways networks and development and is
thereby contrary to RLP policy T1.

Access From Frogmore Lane

The application seeks to provide access from Frogmore Lane, contrary to the
requirements of RLP Policy LES5. It is noted that Map H does show an access
from this road. However, paragraph 1.16 of the RLP clearly states that should
there be any conflict between the written statements and proposal maps, the
written statement prevails. Given the appraisal above, it is clear that there is no
essential requirement for the development to be in the countryside and
therefore there is no need for the access being proposed onto Frogmore Lane.
As such the proposal is in conflict with RLP Policy LE5 and COM2 b) and no
justification has been provided as to why the revised arrangements should be
supported.

CONCLUSION

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and section
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that “determination
must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise”.

As set out above and in the conservation consultation response, the proposed
development would result in harm to the setting of a listed building and
character of the area (RLP policies E2 & E9). Furthermore, it would result in
conflict with strategic polices of the RLP including COM2 & LE5. As harm has
been identified, the planning application would be in conflict with the RLP and
this should be afforded substantial weight in the section 38(6) balance

Although the applicant has not challenged the Council’s housing land supply
position, it can demonstrate a 5 year supply of housing land. Furthermore, the
outcome of the first year of the Housing Delivery Test (HDT) for November
2018 have been published by Government, based upon performance over the
previous three years 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18. Test Valley Borough
Council achieved 265% which means the Council have successfully passed
the HDT for 2018.

As relevant policies in the plan are not absent, silent or out of date paragraph
11 of the Framework is not engaged. The Council is therefore in the position of
carrying out a straight balance, in decision making that means determining the
application in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Harm to residential amenity of existing dwellings has been identified and thus

conflict with RLP Policy LHW4. This is a matter which should be afforded
significant weight.

Page 24



9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Due to the size, scale, mass and poor quality design of the proposal conflict
with RLP Policy E1 has also been identified. This is a matter which should also
be afforded significant weight.

Due to the lack of appropriate traffic impact data, lack of an agreed S.106
agreement in respect of the required Traffic Regulation Order and lack of
functional pedestrian access to the site, the proposed development has not
addressed the requirements of highways safety and in-combination impacts of
the development with adjacent highways networks and development and is
thereby contrary to RLP policy T1. This should be afforded significant weight in
the planning balance.

A number of public benefits have been advanced by the applicant to support
the application. Overall, the proposal would provide specialist care homes
outside of a settlement on land allocated for employment. The accommodation
would be a public benefit but is diminished by the Council’s proven ability to
deliver housing.

In environmental terms, it is suggested that the scheme offers opportunities for
enhancement through landscaping. While there remains detailed concern of
the effectiveness of the landscaping scheme, it would not overcome the
fundamental incongruity of the scheme in relation to the heritage assets and
immediate area. Furthermore, this is a mitigation factor and should be given
minimal weight and would be required for any application or development on
site.

In economic terms the proposal would provide construction jobs during its build
out. These jobs would be transitory and only limited weight can be afforded to
this point. It has also been suggested that economic benefits would accrue to
local shops and services. However, there is no evidence that these are in need
of additional finance other than to mitigate the effects of the development
proposed, additionally other than people working at the site the facility is
unlikely to offer any realistic benefit to the local economy. Thus, little weight
should be afforded to this matter.

The benefits outlined above are not considered sufficient to outweigh the harm
that has been identified to the specified loss of land to meet the industrial
requirement of the RLP Plan period, heritage assets, character of the area
and residential amenity of existing residents. The Heritage assetis an
irreplaceable resource and should be conserved in a manner appropriate to
their significance. Although the harm would be less than significant, it would
still be both real and serious. Some public benefits have been identified but
these are generic benefits and could be provided by any site, and a site that
does not have a detrimental impact on the setting of a listed building, character
of the area and residential amenity of existing properties. For the reasons
given above the public benefits are not sufficient to outweigh the identified
harm to the setting of the Listed Buildings.

Page 25



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

9.12 Placing all of these factors and all of the relevant material considerations in the
balance, it is considered that the adverse impacts of the proposed
development would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits

9.13 Overall, it is considered that the application is contrary to the development
plan, and is not otherwise justified by material considerations, including
national policy in the NPPF. For those reasons, the application should be
refused.

10.0 RECOMMENDATION

REFUSE for the following reasons:

1. The application site is allocated for employment (Classes B1 and
B2) purposes in the Adopted Test Valley Borough Revised Local
Plan, 2016 Policy LE5. The proposal has failed to provide
appropriate justification for the loss of this employment land and is
thereby contrary to Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan
Policies LE5, LE10 and COM2.

2. Dueto the lack of appropriate traffic impact data, lack of an agreed
S.106 agreement in respect of the required Traffic Regulation Order
and lack of pedestrian functionality to the site, the proposed
development has not addressed the requirements of highways
safety and in-combination impacts of the development with
adjacent highways networks and development and is thereby
contrary to Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan Policy T1.

3. The design of the Nursing Homes by virtue of their size, layout,
mass, bulk and monolithic design is considered to equate to poor
quality design which would have an adverse impact on the
character and appearance of the immediate area, in terms of scale,
layout and appearance and would thus be contrary to Test Valley
Borough Revised Local Plan Policies E1 and E2 and the NPPF.

4. The proposed development by virtue of its siting, size and design
would be harmful to the setting and integrity of the heritage asset.
The proposals are thereby contrary to NPPF para 193 as the
proposal would not conserve the heritage asset in a manner
appropriate to its significance. Furthermore the development would
lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of the
designated heritage assets and although there is some public
benefit by building C Class housing, this does not outweigh the
harm caused to the heritage assets, the proposal would therefore
also be contrary to the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan
Policy E9.

5.  The development by virtue of its height, length, design and location
in relation to 1-5 Bargain Close would result in a poor, oppressive
and overbearing outlook for these properties and thereby resulting
in loss of residential amenity. Furthermore, by virtue of the number
and location of windows on the proposal and proximity of these to
1-5 Bargain Close these properties would suffer from a loss of
privacy by virtue of overlooking and perceived overlooking into
their principal habitable rooms and outdoor amenity space contrary
to Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan Policy LHWA4.

Page 26



ES ,g"e 21]23 @ ain F
O . ‘| g 8
%
ut Tree Far, ~
(PH) o §
£3
N
“
&
6
9
D’a/,,

2
su0p o4 2

ost,

Def

Tennis Centre

@ ming Pog!

7.
v g

s

Tennis Coufts

=

Drain

Siteplan

Test Va

Borough Council

ey

THIS PLOT IS PRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF
THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONARY OFFICE ® CROWN COPYRIGHT
UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT
AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS,

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

Page¢ 27

18/03235/FULLS




I est Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

0010 - V-¥d-ZZ-7Z- VIH - €€

Jsquiny ajoy  adhL [2As7  awnjop  Jojeuibug  1a9foid

€S 05¢l-1 €Lee

fngenng £y D ajeag Jsquiny 1aafoid YIH

ONINNY'1d

UB|d UoiednT alis
9L Buimelq

Juswdojane( AspaquieH
AFTHIHWYH ;_.._0__0

uojdweyjnog
Yled oeuepy

;30aloug

WO UINJISILIEY MMM ;M
wod umuIsLIey@salinbua ;9
G/95¢8 8101

OHS 01710 "3IUSHIOA
YLON ‘PUOWIYOLY ‘OXSY ‘SBIGEIS BXSY

uImiIsiIey

Ag Ag
poyoeys | umesq uoyjduasag sjeq A8y
Hr o8 uorssiugng Buuueld 8roee | id
Jojaug

€ JO JUSSU0D USJjLMm SIY Inayym paonpoidal Jo paidod aq Jou Jsni pue
‘P SSBI00SSY Ul SLUBH ul paisan si Buimelp siuy jo JyBukdoo ay |

‘suoneayioads pue sBuimesp Jueas|al
JaUl0 /e yiim uonounfuod vl peal aq o) s) Buimesp siy L

"3SIMIBLIO PSIEIS SS|UN SaJBWI|IW Ul SJ SUOISUSWIP [IY

S3LON

001 (senaw)

e S P a8
‘

0SclL L 9eds

0 OF 02 02 0L O

JERRETTS LANE

DANEBURY WAY

eV © 06211
ue|d uoneso a)ig

Page 28



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

00 - V-dd-27-77- VIH-ELEC

Jaquiny ajoy adf] |aAa  awnjop  JojewBug  jaafoid

oY © 006}
ue|d a)Ig pesodoid

£S 00G-1 £lee

Kyngepng @ aes Jaquiny jaafoid VIH

ONINNY'1d

ue|d 2l pasodoid

:apj1L Buimelq

Juswdoens(] As|laquieH
sl

uoydweyinog

YIB4 OBUBPY
;Jo8loid

WO UIISUIR L A -AN
woo uImas ey @sauinbus ;3
G/95Z8 9¥L10 ]

OHG 01710 ®IYSHIOA
ULON ‘PUOWILDIY ‘9ySy ‘S|qe]S axsy

isLIey

vmxﬂmu;u :.,.”mm._n_ uepduasag ajeq Ay
o i pappe Aejde Aigisia Leulssps 4 610Gk 9d
28 bl ndur gjUByNSUeD 10} panssl ueld 8ug BLZ0L0 o
-8 hdr pappe Buboel | I R-1Y fd
Hr o8 pasijruonel Busped pue pappe shemyed BLLOgk £d
o Pk sUBWWon JH(] 198))e4 o siepdn 6L10TI od
Hr o uoissigng Buiuue)y 81 608c¢ Id
10j98.11(]

B JO JUSSUDI USTILIM SIY INOYJIM paanpoldal 1o paldod a4 jou Jsnw pue
"PI] $EJEI00SSY L] SILIBH Ul pajsan si Buimelp si jo jyBliAdos ey

‘suoijealyaads pue sbuimelp jueas|a)
Jayyo ||e ypm uonaunfuca Ul peal aq o) s1 Buimelp siy]

"QSINISLHO PEIR)S SSBIUN SSNSLUI[ILU Ul 912 SUDISUSLUID ||y
‘Bumelp siyy e(eas jou o]

S310N

NN
a AL
AN PNNGN;
s e R s
Mol ol
e A A
AEALAINIIN SN VAN
v
e
fos

sRTA
SR

A

P LRLRTA
Moo
v v
An
n

e

P e
DO
ST

e

ty
% Wa

O oA 2
NIRRT
RAINET,
TN

TN e

( ~ P,
LRESLEN
FR iRt

S NIV
SR
SARaNTeIt e tian
Cages AL

: ¥

S Y

AR

&

aluoy Julsiny

s8u)1ed paddoy
dooy wwigogeT
Ag papunog
fEA 201G

-

7%

JERRETT'S LANE

s
SGRINININ,
easony

A
IO
GIRES

WONDN! %%
LI 2
RERIERER

NS INTNISININ N

B ERERESINPLONON !
BRI IING,

RESRAIA AL

i

7 ok o8

e
7
G

Lrel
C Mg
el

&,
g

b sl

%,
NG
SRS
R,
v
Mo»c\ P

oo
N PN S
..»...»w? %
Ly
R,
i e o
gaatautinges

u.." r

5 IS

RIS
P
S
ISEAGNIN
GNP

RIESH
RN

o ’

EPRR Tt

wli."i!

7

wgTy
SwoH Busany (20180 jouna

£y

i

NEBURY WAY

pSERIN oL
AR
2
NGy

s
ISP IRON po-douq RIS
R P
EIERING 234 i

Ay
b SXt
e A

&

o to sy |
s
@W\I\O‘I

R

o .

SN

W \)
3

W )
om D, c“ﬂ&r

AT o
Grrry )
R
2o

v

e s ’-\( "

o

[z

ESEN,

iy
TRy G

e Ry &
RN oA R RaN AN

Y

e Rl

R85

A

e

S s s

NI, Loeacki el
it MV
s L
ity rere

Lol

wJied uiebleg

Page 29



0L (senaw) S 14 € Z I 0

LEC0 -V -¥d-ZZ- 10 - VIH - €1€C Japusy SUYM HO _ ] ] ]

Jaguiny oy adh) |ana]  awngop  Jopubug  pefouy
. == 00L-1 @le3s
a o e sfougpuaiglein
fgeng v @ aerg Jaquiny 123f04d VIH ilm.u.uu.n

uoIssIwgng buluug|d JO4 |  sewed pueoog ‘smopum ol 9102 v |

RS A S9|I] ule|d enooeud] .

9y Buimesq

Juswdojeraq AopaquieH Buippe|D d1jel8|p Jusawa) ai1qi4 . : o
ATTHIAWYH u_:m___U OO P _\ __/\N “_
UoI}eAd|q }JsOM  ~

' H

LA b d AL AR T L d ]

uoydweyinog
‘awoH BuisinN [eoibojoina -yled seuepy

:j03foug

L0 UIMIISLUEL MMM M
Lo uimIsLIBY@SaLinbus 8
G/9GZB BF.L10 1

OHG 01710 "31ysHIoA
UHON 'puoWyoRy "eysy 'sa|qe)s aysy

uimiisuIey

fg kg
paysayy | umesg uonduasaq a1eg ABY
Hr 0g uoissiuqng buluueld| 81-60-.7 | 6d
dya buimojjo4
Bl o8 sbuimesq Bujuueld pajepdn| g1-z0%) | 9d

li'] m 4
_ mill EIIIIH;IilII!i!I!_mni,.,,:‘_'!’_"

00l ‘1 "\_‘/
uoljeAd|3 yjnos "

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

TR

VTl R Y T

Il|i |
.E%"

1
|
i

o
1

|

1

i

ale) il
siepads =

(LN T TSN S RAAETICS WEAEENY

i

= e

o =
A T A B PN N M e T L W
i B ol Rl g o ] o

VAT ko BT @ ot £ o8 Taaisiind 35

TS T 0] ey (e 1 v T
AN | s pilT g e
A N L B R 1 i3 £ B

BN M ) o T L W R ate EPAN
T Bl 1 e i B R B 4
Emthm i kg fl rrm Eoz e A

1

L I S T B AR T

= . —

0 ] | ot e o B e R e L D

= ey )
-

“Jojoeng
B JO 1U8sSu00 ualium au) inoyym paanpordal 1o paidoo aq jou jsnw pue
pI7] SAIBICOSSY U SLLUEH Ul paysan st Buwelp sy jo ybufdea ay |

“suoneanioads pue sBUMEID JUBAB[E)
B0 [[B Yyw uenounfuod Ul peed eq of st Buwmelp siy|

BSINIBYIO PBJEIS SSBJUN SABLLIIL Ul BIE SUOISUBWIP [y

‘Bumelp s sjeas jou og

SJLON

Page 30




and must not be copied or reproduced without the wiitten consent of a

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Harris Irwin Associates Lid.
Director.

All dimensions are in milimetres unless stated otherwise.
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other

relevant drawings and specifications.

Do not scale this drawing.

NOTES

BG
JH

By

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

’

Drawn | Checked
By

BG
BG

"'-',._"-_'-l' B 1,.._}

Description
® O

>
=
=
<

14-02-19 |Updated Planning Drawings
Following DRP
27.09-18 |Planning Submission

Adanac Park- Neurological Nursing Home,

Aske Stables, Aske, Richmond, North
Southampton

Yorkshire. DL10 5HG

101748 825675
Hambardar Mavalanmant

e: enquiries@harrisirwin.com
w: www harrisirwin.com

har

Project:
Client:

P
P
Rev

Suitability

Do
0230

Scale @ A1
1:100
-ZZ-DR-A -

Project  Originator Volume Level Type Role

2313

2313 - HIA - 01

For Planning Submission

Hamberley Development
Elevations Sheet 1

Drawing Title:
HIA Project Number

TR TR N B ah
: AT

" T E AT O TP SN T T e "
U R ST O 1 i | | L1l
I |'| 1 0l 1L .!,| 5:.||| L L -l.| 4 ,|||. i DL | RATEEN 1

MMWWMWMEGL i m'k i

P —
B - « " N = .
. | i
H LELT ~ -

M AR

Ion

ion

-~ East Elevat

4 North Elevat
2

Page 31

Fibre Cement Metalic Cladding
RAL 7016 to Windows, Door and Facias

Terracotta Plain Tiles
Grey Blend Bricks
Off White Render

] piv
Y FY

(metres) 10

=/ 1:100

K

Scale 1:100




and must not be copied or reproduced without the written consent of a

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Harris Irwin Associates Lid.
Director.

All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise.
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other

relevant drawings and specifications.

Do not scale this drawing.

NOTES

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

BG

BG

Suitability
Do

BG
JH

Drawn | Checked
By By

Scale @ A1
1:100

Description
® O

FiISIFWwin

Project  Originator Volume Level

o

14-02-19 |Updated Planning Drawings
Following DRP
27-09-18 |Planning Submission

architects & designers

Aske Stables, Aske, Richmond, North

Yorkshire. DL10 5HG
1: 01748 825675

Date
e: enquiries@harrisirwin.com

w: www harrisirwin.com

Project:

Adanac Park Nursing Home

Southampton

Hamberley Development

Drawing Title:

Elevations Sheet 2

For Planning Submission
HIA Project Number

2313

Client:

P6
P5
Rev

Number

Type  Role
2313-HIA - 02-ZZ-DR- A - 0211

RAL 7016 to Windows, Door and Facias

Red Blend Bricks

|"""'|"""'["|'.':‘|;. Al Ill il |'~ 'l" Al
i
|‘ |I|[.‘ I||[ |IH| I”|_.| |l||1 ll'“ |![|| |||f-||:||l|||.|.|

AL

Timber Effect Cedral Click Cladding
Blue Reconstituted Slate Roof Tile

ey J .,. - 1.
» .

.;-’-"

.' .-} gL ﬁ LIME{IQ ,]rll;?}jrtj ["‘lilﬂyl ];;;ru "r!. ?'U“u ]|' Illj E{I[;I

!-?f?f*« ‘ﬂ‘ ;'.;'v__i._r' AR R At

Tl OO 1O T T T
AT

-“F |] "'l|

"'l[ Ilii” n|| |n|] .;ql qu 51[| ||||

S

1T ',u[ I TR 'HI u[ m
| II !_Illl:_!ill:"[! "!III.[,_[J'”' .”‘ .. I1| || I I | | Ill

Iﬂllﬂlllﬂllllﬂ!ﬂﬂlﬂﬂlllﬂllﬂlﬂlﬂlﬂl'_

| \ |
IR |

|||I !nll !|| ||i ||1 ||l [||l-|||.|l T
ALIFRREIL l il I| L ".I.=:f.' '

TS Ty .

1 T

"|"n"' M-
| 'IH ||||[ |I|||!|'I|1| |!||1 |Il{| |1ll| 1{| |I|||
(! ||||'|||.n-..-' |||! | l'll

I||I|[||.I| h|‘:lﬂ||!||[| lllhil'l;l I TI

t” I

ion
ion

) ;‘; } ‘[ l .:. ; |.1r 11 !
|ﬂ'1 't ([ 'E'l'.l a';ll' ,In‘g' I ,n'l' h'('l "‘l IH
A m L) il Lm A ;mll‘ i

:Flllmiirj* ﬂwwﬁm I-l{. L._. T 'rnk’ﬂ-ilﬁ

1:100

South Elevat

1:100

@ West Elevat

- g ¥

Scale 1:100

Page 32

Off White Render

(metres) 10




NOTES

Do not scale this drawing.

All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other

relevant drawings and specifications.

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Harris Irwin Associates Lid.

and must not be copied or reproduced without the written consent of a

Director.

P
.
= — = —
= —— —_——
=— — |——
= —_——
= — =
— e —_—
i i
L e '.
Vil i
]
i i
|
s Ll I|‘
| 11
JUEARL
Il i
3 ]
I AL
LS
PR iy
i e
P e
¥ ‘
3 '!: | Ly
i 2
= e IS -
i -'.‘. = :
| o Yo -~
i s pht i
=t S R
| T VE A
d: X ) 4 - .lti
".
{]
|
i
| |
r v
it -
il =
| | -l
I
' |
| |
—
I
ot
'3
;.
) G
i
-4
o

on

1:100

@ North Elevat

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

By
(A ,_:

{

risirwin

BG
BG

Drawn | Checked
By

lesign

g -
E «|= & - = g
o K=} ad el
| B A c o
B |25 &0 ¢ = T
£x|5|E n £ 8 o
E2a|3|e @ o) = E g =
=i o E B
£ u g o 6 = 8 =
.3 =] N o T w | e |
%_3 £ . XD E £ =
= Dot o= ©@.2 o
o oo . — @0 ﬁ W = o
-— — —_— = L Q@ @
s (2|8 m L me SEE T
= > - ir—] [« 0] =1 et m
3 |g[° O 2§ 88 g 2
xr ™ L = e 2 =
e 2 @ o
- o L= =i =
B 25 Lo 2 o <T

P6
P5
Rev

Southampton

|
=
4

Client:

—

[

@

E

=4

Q -

?J —-—

—

3| 8

o

= || 82

oE2

= = c

228
£w®

£ z >

© || 8@

I o

For Planning Submission

Suitability
D0

Scale @ A1
1:100

Project  Originator Volume Level

HIA Project Number
2313

Number

2313-HIA-02-ZZ-DR-A - 0210

Type  Role

if ||| "|l

I., 1...., I !l-f'l' |- r

| l'l[l'l I|] |1 r.l| .ll |ri [Il] l;

!l'ﬂ )*H.s ll.. l \rﬂ..u[l,.f"!1ff I},H

|'I'|| L[Ikl!l '|1 |||’ LII[ H ||| |lf1
i RN
Zﬂ l”ﬂ'“ l-l rler

..all "l
.||II-

I ) L[l'l.lll MERTTEATY
_;.:ai:uf..'ﬁ,;- PR AR PP

'||| AN ||'||]l|1

AT R T A T T VA
il I.! !|r| .i:]..“|| .|.‘[ |-| .l'..'r.] |i!].'l.| -|!|.'|.l W I.:I.\l .iil,ll.| .i": '

mN

A R TR R T

WA '|;"‘|' 1 f |

‘L"in‘||.u [1:!‘I
l""' ” i N IHI'M ||'

'lll..‘” "| .§'|"'l I- | .",[”l - “|Llf1

Mull“..“l ~.“ IH H | Fl'l"'l')‘.lh“-"*q,lllnlf‘

|| ulm ...r .u['lla A
|.1| !')',M . r'ﬂuil."

r[ ri .HI' .. I. e '

"HMH“ rl J: [ “Hll,.]

I NI’HJ anl '.: _' .ll Il _'.I.r | I I;IJ l|] I]1 11
’g“ ‘ L' Il '|.' L | S
il

m 1L I: AT l.Jl..Ihi ruth i ll,I].Il kT Lt I'd il I 1.|.l||

Timber Effect Cedral Click Cladding
Blue Reconstituted Slate Roof Tile

ion

1:100

@ East Elevat

RAL 7016 to Windows, Door and Facias

Red Blend Bricks

Scale 1:100

—_
@
o°
c
[}
o
)
=
=
4=
@)
o
b aond
—_~
@
@
=
]
E
0
<
™
™~
o

Page 33




0¢¢0 -V -dd-00-10 - VIH-€lEC

JaquinN ajoy adfL  [eAe7 ewnjop Jojeuibug  308loid

LY @ 004:1 37VIS TVNSIA

€S 00k -1 €lee
Rmgeyng 1V © oleag Jaquiny j08fo1d VIH

—hooees P DOSTENEN
wo| we w9 W wg wo

uoIssiwans buiuueld 104

ue|d J00|4 punols)
9L Buimeag

ATTHIAWYH Jual|o

H

Juswdojane( AspequieH
uoydweyinog
‘DWoH BuisinN [eaibojoina -}led oeuepy

;Josfoig

WOD" UIMIISLLEY MMM ‘M
woo uImIsLIey@saLinbus ;8
G/9G¢8 87.L1L0 4

OHS 0170 "aIYSHOA
UMON ‘PUOWIYORY ‘8¥SY ‘SAIqelS ¥sY

siaubisep g s1081yo.e

uInJIsLIeYy
o e O

Ag Ag
payday) | umeiq :o_ua_._ummn_ ajeq ADY
HP og yeiqleud| 81-60-L | €d
HP o9 uoissiwqgng Bujuueld| 81-60-2Z | ¥d
dya bumojjo4
og og sBuimesq buuueld pajepdn| 61-20-7L | Sd

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

“Jojoaig
€ O JUaSU09 UaRLM 8y} Jnoyym paonpoidal Jo paidod aq jou Jsnw pue
"P}] S8JeI00SSY UIMI| SLUBH Ul Pa}saA S| Buimelp siuy jo JybuAdod sy

‘suopealoads pue sBumelp Jueas|al
Jay0 [le yym uonounfuod u peal aq o} si Bumelp siyL

"9SIMIBY)0 Pae)S SS8|UN SaBWI|[IW Ul 88 SUOISUBWIP ||y
‘Buimelp siy} 8|eas jou oq

S31ON

00l -1

ue|d 100|4 puno.o

MGG
uondaoay

W19
uope|nang

WLyl
£qqo 8o1n8g

W'y
uone[nalY

W €8T
uone[naln

W gee
10pIUOY)

Wy'ee
10pII0Y)

Wy'ee
10pIUOY)

abelo)g .
was ||
Aieyues .
weid [
ajnsug .

aoedskeq .
uonenay D

wooJlpag .
puaba juswuedaq Ag

l

Page 34



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Page 35



8%682_oo._o_ztcamho_go‘z_n_o:oz_;05305_;vov:oEo‘_ovoozvoae
9q jJou ADw )| “PajWI SBIDIS0SSY [9DYDIN HOMS Jo JybuAdod ayy st Buimosp siy) @

IV © 0G¢-1 ¥01°98%9

dSW d4 810¢ 'AON

a»IOIHO NM4Q 3wa

1NOAVT SONIMYVN ANV SNOIS
avod SS300V
JNOH 34v0

JUL ONIMYIA

ONIMSANN
‘WYV4 NIvodve

J1LIL gor

}NOPRYDIWLIBNIS MMM M
yNod'|PeyYdlWIeNISPlBW D

SLZ 198 SE9L0
L1Z £98 GE910 ‘L

4 61DY 241ysyiag ‘Weydiey ‘olenbs aquioo) ‘dsnoH 3quioo)
P31 S91RIDOSSY [SRYIIW JeNnlS

SYIANIDONIT ONILTINSNOD

SA1VIDOSSY
TAVHIIW 1L4VNLS

SNLVLIS ONIMVA
Hing sy
UOIJONIISUO) J0j panss|

8LCS 104 papiwqgng
8¢S 104 pspiugng
anss| buiuuplyg
anss| Alouiwifed

Jopua| Joj panss|
¥01S 404 papigng Va

SNOISIAFY
uonduasaq A9y

apg  [ruo | wa|

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

"03LOVINOO 38 LSNN- 439VNVA
AVMHOIH V34V TIONNOD ALNNOD 3YIHSAWVH
JHL d3ONINNOD J4V SHYOM ANV 140434
SHIOM
ANV 40 INJWIONINNOD OL d0Idd LS
NO (3IWHIANOD 38 OL ST3AIT ONILSIX3 TV "019
‘NOILVY3AISNOD
OINI NAMVL 910¢ QOdSL L4vdd % ,c00C
SNOILOFYIA TVYANTD ANV SNOILYINO3Y
SNOIS Jl44vdl JHL, HLIM A1dNOD TIVHS
SNOIS Jl44VdL ANV SONIMYVA aQvOd TV '69
WNOILYNLIS AYVHOdWAL
NV SHYOM QVOd d04 SNOIS ANV SJFINSVAN
AL3AVS D44Vl — 8 ¥3LdVHO VANV SNOIS

119

Ol44vdl, Ud 3HL 40 SININIHINDIY IHL
HLIM ATdNOD ANV LNO J3I4y¥vVO 38 TIVHS

AVMHOIH 2M18Nd FHL NIHLIM SYdom TV ‘89
'SISNVID AYVLNINITAdNS
S IONNOD ALNNOD FMIHSAAYH ONIGNTONI
‘. 03ONILX3 ANV Q3IIIGON — SHYOM AVMHIIH
¥04 NOILYOI4I03dS FHL, HLIM JONVAYO0IOV
LOIMIS NI 1IN0 Q3¥YYD 39 OL SY¥OM TV °/9
"SNOILYDII03dS ANV SONIMYNA
INIHIS INVAITIY TIV HLIM NOILONNPNOD
NI Gv34 39 TIVHS ONIMYYA SIHL 99
"ZON9SO INISN GINHOISNYYL
MYOMLIN Sd9 TWNOILYN NO 03svg
‘WNLYA AIAYNS JONVQYO 0L 3LVT3Y STIATT 69
‘a9 Q3INY3IA AININS
JONYNGYO OL 3LV13Y SILYNIG¥00D AIAMNS  +9
HY0Zdl  Y1044NS
HOIMSd
QY0¥ HOVIINVY G91-¢9l
aL7 SAINYNS 103
‘A8 NIMVLYIANN
(0102 3NN ¥1-010/L/€S6L 1L :434) AIAYNS
TVIIHAYY90dOL NO a3svd SI ONIMYYA SIHL €9
"ISIMYIHLO QILYLS SSTINN
SIULIN NI I¥Y NMOHS SNOISNIWIQ TV °Z9
ONIMVYA SIHL WOM4 IIWOS 1ON 00 ‘19

VHANIO -S310N

LezLl 10

Ly LE 1D
ol

JUS NO d3349v 34
OL NOILVOOT PESYH = 71,

@)
b
2

09'L1L 16,

Oo

)}
=
-
-

(3HS3443d
38 0L ONIMAVA
ANM ONILSIXS

uono

369N esuaQ

aurirt

E ONIMAVIA
ANIT ONILSIX3 +

ANVISI
Jl44vL ONILSIX3

VNS

INISSOdD
NVI41S3d3d
M3N

o

8 ds/6
L1/ 0AS

LS NO d3349v 34
0Ll NOILYOO1 4¢Sy

uonpebap ssusq

ONIMUVIN INIT JTONVIML,
AVMY A1 MAN

LSH NOIS AVMY Al

¢Sy NOILYOOT MIN NI NOIS
JIV1d JNVN VIV MIAN

oz Lt

ONISSOHO
NVI41S303d
MIAN

croft

ge0rt

9sroft

66:0

JAIM WG| SANM ISYIASNVYL

JQIM Wwgo L SANIT TYNNLIONOT

990t

g0t

9gort

X%

// auIUOLONIISUOY)

\\
\\
oor //
\\

W
W
W
W

yLoft

geoft

sor it

P4 3|

SINT NOWAIHO | *83H | 000z | 0008 | ¥OYOL | G

'SYA 40 ¥VAY W04 JONVMYATD wg'0 WNWININ 38 LSNIN 1SOd NIIS ‘S¥A 40 dvad Ol 4l
TIONVIML AvM 3AD | oszL - | oge 701 " "INV Ol44vdl 40 3903 ¥0 3ANM TINNYHO W04 SI JONVISIA 13S440 « D
INT VM 3AS T1Enod | ooz | ooe 009 | veool N 'SSINYOIHL TIVM Wwz'e 3@ TIVHS SISOd gwwg/ 9

ANV 0144¥¥L 40 1MVLIS ¥O NOIONNPM 1V AVMIOVIMMYO 40 3903 | 0SL 008 00L | £°€00l N '5¢0 01 N3 S8 40 °06% o4 30vd0 HLIM

ONIATANOD T3ALS WO¥4 QIYNLOVANNYA 38 TIVHS ONV 8¥8% S8 HLM ONIKIANOD ‘S1SOd
SINYT Ol44vdl 40 3903 ¥O INIT JHINIO ONINYVM | 00 | 000Z | 000% 001 LW NOILOIS MOTIOH T33LS ¥vIngnL 38 TIVHS (SISOd LHOIVHLS ONV 3Svd 3AIM) SISOd NIIS '8

wonduosaq (ww) | (wuw) | (ww) onBoig | 1o TV 43 SSV10 £00Z:1/668ZL NI S8 HLIM ATdWOO TIVHS ANV TWIMILVW 3AILOTTAIY
o upm | dog | ybue] . 04134 39 0L 30V4 NOIS SIMENISSY QILYNINNTI-NON ONY QILYNINNTTI ATIVNYILX3 ¥
FINAIHIS SONMYYN QVOd 'SAION J1NTIHOS NAIS

SYIIANIONI 00S/I0H
HLIM 03349V 38 OL NOILYOOT "SY4OM 40 NOILITdNOD ¥3LdY SILON 33S . | «QV3HY LNOAYT V0¥ M3N, ONINIAIM q-p
SHINOW ¢ NVHL 3JOWN ¥04 G3NIVII¥ 38 AVW NOIS AMVYOdNIL SI1SOd LHOVMLS 99/ ON INON —| 00b¢ | 0S=X1 - 1noAvT QvOM NI JONVHO ININVNYId ¢ ¢ | ¥lOL | ¢Sy
SIION 33S :
(ATIN434YO IAIYA 3SVATd % SATILATIH) NOIS 31¥1d FNWN S1SOd LHOVALS 29/ ON INON ~| 000 - NOIS IVNOILO3HIQ, M3N 4 _ 909 | zsy
8 310N 33S aasn 38 ol .

SNOILYOI4103dS ¥04 Q9¥SL OL ¥343y 1S0d 3Sva 3am ON|  ONILHOM G3INNON dOL -| 00§t | 009 AVM 3AI9 | _ 209 | 1Sy

ON/S3A «0 ALON 33S (w) | (wuw) 1S0d 40 |SN9IS 40| ON | .
ININNOD 3dAL 1S0d 3005 NOILYNINNTI NOLLY30] oNUNAOH| 215 NOILdI¥0S3a smanon | aanon | cowg | 3

F1INA3IHOS SNAIS Av0Y

Page 36


AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: GENERAL G1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING G2. ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE IN METRES  ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE IN METRES  UNLESS STATED OTHERWISE. G3. THIS DRAWING IS BASED ON TOPOGRAPHICAL THIS DRAWING IS BASED ON TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY (REF: 11953/T/01C-14 JUNE 2010) UNDERTAKEN BY: EDI SURVEYS LTD 163-165 RANELAGH ROAD IPSWICH SUFFOLK  IP20AH G4. SURVEY COORDINATES RELATE TO ORDNANCE SURVEY COORDINATES RELATE TO ORDNANCE SURVEY DERIVED GRID.  G5. LEVELS RELATE TO ORDANCE SURVEY DATUM, LEVELS RELATE TO ORDANCE SURVEY DATUM, BASED ON NATIONAL GPS NETWORK TRANSFORMED USING OSGM02. G6. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL RELEVANT SCHEME DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS. G7. ALL WORKS TO BE CARRIED OUT IN STRICT  ALL WORKS TO BE CARRIED OUT IN STRICT  ACCORDANCE WITH "THE SPECIFICATION FOR HIGHWAY WORKS - MODIFIED AND EXTENDED", INCLUDING HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S SUPPLEMENTARY CLAUSES. G8. ALL WORKS WITHIN THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY ALL WORKS WITHIN THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY SHALL BE CARRIED OUT AND COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE DfT "TRAFFIC SIGNS MANUAL CHAPTER 8 - TRAFFIC SAFETY MEASURES AND SIGNS FOR ROAD WORKS AND TEMPORARY SITUATION". G9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS AND TRAFFIC SIGNS ALL ROAD MARKINGS AND TRAFFIC SIGNS SHALL COMPLY WITH "THE TRAFFIC SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2002" & DRAFT TSRGD 2016 TAKEN INTO CONSIDERATION. G10. ALL EXISTING LEVELS TO BE CONFIRMED ON ALL EXISTING LEVELS TO BE CONFIRMED ON SITE PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORKS. G11. BEFORE ANY WORKS ARE COMMENCED THE BEFORE ANY WORKS ARE COMMENCED THE HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL AREA HIGHWAY MANAGER MUST BE CONTACTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
GIVE AWAY SIGN RS1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
IRF Ht 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
TAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
BTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
BTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
11.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
ELCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
G 11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
G 11.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
G 11.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
G 11.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
CL 11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
CL 11.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
CL 11.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
CL 11.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
CL 12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
CL 11.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
12.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
11.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
12.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
11.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
11.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
11.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
11.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
11.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
11.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
11.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
11.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
11.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
12.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
13.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
13.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
12.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
12.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
11.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
11.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
11.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
11.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
11.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
11.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
11.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
11.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
11.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
12.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
12.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
11.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
11.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
11.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
12.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
11.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
11.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
11.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
11.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
11.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
11.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
11.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
11.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
11.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
11.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
11.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
11.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
11.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
11.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
12.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
11.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
11.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
11.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
11.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
11.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
SMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
SYC    /1T

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
9/Sp 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
CLF Ht 1.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
Tarmac Footpath

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
Tarmac Footpath

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
TAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Dense Vegetation

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
Dense Vegetation

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
Tarmac Footpath

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
Tarmac Footpath

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
G 11.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
G 11.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
G 11.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
G 11.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
CL 11.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
CL 11.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
11.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
11.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
11.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
11.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
11.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
10.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
11.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
11.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
11.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
11.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
11.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
11.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
11.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
11.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
11.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
11.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
11.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
11.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
11.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
11.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
11.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
11.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
11.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
11.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
11.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
11.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
11.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
11.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
11.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
12.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
11.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
11.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
11.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
11.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
11.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
11.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
11.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
12.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
11.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
11.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
11.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
11.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
11.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
11.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
11.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
11.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
11.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
11.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
11.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
11.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
11.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
11.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
11.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
11.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
12.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
11.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
11.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
11.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
11.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
10.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
10.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
12.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
10.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
10.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
10.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
11.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
10.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
11.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
11.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
11.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
11.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
11.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
11.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
12.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
12.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
12.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
12.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
12.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
11.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
10.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
10.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
10.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
10.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
10.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
10.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
12.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
12.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
12.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
12.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
12.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
12.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
12.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
Bushes & Brambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
BWF Ht 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
BWF Ht 1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
BWF Ht 1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
Bushes & Brambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Arable Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
Ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
Ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
Ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
Ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
Hedge Ht 1.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
Hedge Ht 1.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
Arable Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
F R O G M O R E   L A N E

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
NEW AREA NAME PLATE   SIGN IN NEW LOCATION RS2

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
NEW PEDESTRIAN CROSSING  

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
NEW GIVE AWAY TRIANGLE LINE MARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
EXISTING LINE MARKING TO BE REFRESHED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
EXISTING TRAFFIC ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
EXISTING LINE MARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
M1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
M1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
M4 

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
M3 

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
M2 

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
M1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
M1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
M5 

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
M1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
RS3b LOCATION TO BE AGREED ON SITE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
RS3a LOCATION TO BE AGREED ON SITE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
NEW PEDESTRIAN CROSSING  

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
M3 

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
M2 

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
M1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
M3 

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
M2 

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
M1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
SIGN SCHEDULE NOTES: A. EXTERNALLY ILLUMINATED AND NON-ILLUMINATED ASSEMBLIES SIGN FACE TO BE RETRO EXTERNALLY ILLUMINATED AND NON-ILLUMINATED ASSEMBLIES SIGN FACE TO BE RETRO REFLECTIVE MATERIAL AND SHALL COMPLY WITH BS EN 12899/1:2007 CLASS REF RA2. B. SIGN POSTS (WIDE BASE AND STRAIGHT POSTS) SHALL BE TUBULAR STEEL HOLLOW SECTION SIGN POSTS (WIDE BASE AND STRAIGHT POSTS) SHALL BE TUBULAR STEEL HOLLOW SECTION POSTS, COMPLYING WITH BS 4848 AND SHALL BE MANUFACTURED FROM STEEL COMPLYING WITH GRADE Fe 430c OF BS EN 10 025. C. 76mm  POSTS SHALL BE 3.2mm WALL THICKNESS. 76mm  POSTS SHALL BE 3.2mm WALL THICKNESS.D.  * OFFSET DISTANCE IS FROM CHANNEL LINE OR EDGE OF TRAFFIC LANE.    IF TO REAR OF VRS, SIGN POST MUST BE MINIMUM 0.8m CLEARANCE FROM REAR OF VRS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
NUMBER OF POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
REF.

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
DIAG. No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
NUMBER  OF SIGNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
NAL SOCKET YES/NO

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
POST TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
COMMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
SIZE (mm)

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
MOUNTING (m)

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
LOCATION SEE NOTE D*

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
ILLUMINATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
ROAD SIGNS SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
RS1

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
602

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
GIVE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
600

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
1.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
TOP MOUNTED LIGHTING TO BE USED

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
WIDE BASE POST SEE NOTE B

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
NO

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
REFER TO TSRGD FOR SPECIFICATIONS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
RS2

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
NEW 'DIRECTIONAL' SIGN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
606

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
1.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
NO

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
NAME PLATE SIGN (HILLYFIELDS & PLEASE DRIVE CAREFULLY) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
RS3 a-b

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
PERMANENT CHANGE IN ROAD LAYOUT.  WIDENING "NEW ROAD LAYOUT AHEAD"  

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
7014 

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
2.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
NONE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
x=50

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
NO

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
76  STRAIGHT POSTSSEE NOTES 

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
TEMPORARY SIGN MAY BE RETAINED FOR MORE THAN 3 MONTHS AFTER COMPLETION OF WORKS. LOCATION TO BE AGREED WITH HCC/SCC ENGINEERS  

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
NONE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
76  STRAIGHT POSTSSEE NOTES 

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
**	LONGITUNAL LINES 100mm WIDE.  TRANSVERSE LINES 150mm WIDELONGITUNAL LINES 100mm WIDE.  TRANSVERSE LINES 150mm WIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
(mm)

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
Width

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
(mm)

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
Gap

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
Diag.No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
Ref.

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
(mm)

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
Length

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
ROAD MARKINGS SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
M1

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
1004

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
4000

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
WARNING CENTRE LINE OR EDGE OF TRAFFIC LANES

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
1040.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
M5

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
3000

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
CHEVRON LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
100/ 150**

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
M2

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
1003.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
700

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
EDGE OF CARRIAGEWAY AT JUNCTION OR START OF TRAFFIC LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
M3

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
1003A

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
600

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
DOUBLE GIVE WAY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
1250

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
1023

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
M4

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
3750

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
GIVE WAY TRIANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
This drawing is the copyright of Stuart Michael Associates Limited. It may not be reproduced or amended without the written approval of Stuart Michael Associates

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
@ A1

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
BARGAIN FARM,

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
NURSLING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
JOB TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
5486.104.104104

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
Drn

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
Chk

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
CARE HOME ACCESS ROAD SIGNS AND MARKINGS LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
MSR

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
NOV. 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
DRAWING STATUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
Submitted for S278

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
As Built

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
Submitted for S38

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
Issued for Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
Planning Issue

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Issued for Tender

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
Preliminary Issue

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
Submitted for S104


Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

ITEM 8
APPLICATION NO. 19/00795/FULLS
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH
REGISTERED 28.03.2019
APPLICANT Mr Kevin Harrington
SITE Land Adjacent Mill Lane, Sherfield English, Romsey,
SO51 6FN, SHERFIELD ENGLISH
PROPOSAL Change of use of agricultural to public open space,
and creation of a car park
AMENDMENTS e Layout drawing
¢ Kissing gate detail
¢ Field gate detail
e Height Barrier detail
e Board walk detail
e Hard and Soft Landscape details
e Swept path detall
Received 8th and 9th May 2019
CASE OFFICER Miss Sarah Barter

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0
11

2.0
2.1

3.0
3.1

3.2

INTRODUCTION
The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee because it is
submitted by the Council for its own development which is not minor.

SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION

The application site is currently agricultural land located on the western side of
Mill Lane in the parish of Sherfield English. The land covers an area of 12.8
hectares and is a varied landscape of open grassland, scrub, wet woodland and
mature trees within hedgerows. The land was purchased by TVBC in July 2018
to set out and manage as Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG).

PROPOSAL

The application is to change the use of the agricultural land to public open
space with mown footpaths and a board walk / path across the site. A car park
would also be created to accommodate 12 parking spaces together with a
height barrier and bunding around this area.

An information board will be located in the car park and a number of waste bins
will be located around the site. Timber benches will be placed at regular
intervals. The boundary of the site will be formed of stock fencing and post and
rail fencing.

Page 37



4.0
4.1

5.0
5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

6.0
6.1

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

HISTORY

None

CONSULTATIONS
Policy — No Objection

Highways — No Objection

Leisure — No Objection

Landscape — No Objection

Romsey Ramblers — No Comment

Ecology — No response. Update to follow

Natural England — Support

We welcome the change of use at this site as part of the council’s strategy to
mitigate recreational disturbance on the designated sites within the New Forest.
We believe the provision of suitable alternative natural greenspace and the
proposed management of this site, as set out in the submitted plans, will attract
people away from the New Forest Special Protection Area (SPA), reducing
pressure on it and being of benefit to the conservation objectives for the
designated site.

Trees — No Objection

Environmental Protection — No Objection

REPRESENTATIONS Expired 30.04.2019
Jays Orchard Wellow Wood Road — Objection

There is 10,000s of acres of New Forest to walk this area is much too
small and will be abused.

What screening and fencing will there be to keep dogs from my home?
We do not want to be looked at day and night by people walking about.
This is a security risk to all homes this backs on to.

The entrance is on a bad bend and will increase accident risk to homes
this backs on to.

The road is used by drivers and horse riders and it will be worse with
people in these lanes who do not know them.

Car park will have an affect on the surface of the land.

What surface will the car park be?

Page 38



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

6.2 Wellow Wood Cottage and lvy Cottage, Wellow Wood Road — Comments
neither supporting or objecting

7.0
7.1

7.2

7.3

8.0
8.1

Our garden and paddock backs onto the brook and land which is to be
utilised for the purpose of recreation/dog walking etc. Whilst we approve
of the proposed use of the land, we also have some reservations
regarding how this may affect the wildlife.

Looking at the plans and the proposed boundary fence and footpath, we
are concerned with the close proximity to the brook and potential
disturbance to nesting birds as a result.

The land north of the brook is very wet and boggy for most of the year
and would be unsuitable for foot travel.

We also note, that the bio-diversity study was carried out during the early
part of this year — the winter months. It is now bordering on summer,
which brings the summer migrants. May we humbly suggest, that you
conduct further bio-diversity studies at this time of year to obtain a more
seasonal evaluation of the importance for wildlife and birds in this area.
Whilst we embrace the fact that local people will benefit from the use of
this land, we feel that it must be managed with conservation in mind and
due consideration given to the sensitive wetland area north of the brook.
Whilst | am generally happy that the land will be used as “suitable
alternative natural greenspace” | have some concern that centres on
maintaining the privacy and tranquillity that we currently enjoy.

Your plans show parking for ten cars and therefore in principle there
might be 20 to 40 people using the site at any one time although more
likely 10 to 20. This is not an insignificant number and creates the
potential for the noise and privacy concerns | have expressed above.
Lesser provision for parking might alleviate this.

POLICY
Government Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP)

COM1, COM2, E1, E2, E5, LHW4, T1, T2

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)

Sherfield English Village Design Statement
New Forest Interim Mitigation Framework

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The main planning considerations are:

Principle of development
Character and appearance

Trees

Ecology

Impacts on neighbouring properties
Highways and Parking

Page 39



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Principle of development

Policy COM2: Settlement Hierarchy — the site lies outside the boundaries of
settlement and is therefore within the countryside. Development outside of
settlement boundaries will be permitted if a) it is a type appropriate according
to RLP policy or b) it is essential to be located in the countryside. This proposal
for Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace is essential to be located within
the Countryside and therefore complies with criterion b) of this policy.

Policy COM1 of the Revised Local Plan sets out the scale of residential
development envisaged over the plan period, including the split of this between
the housing market areas. Paragraph 5.40 indicates that housing sites coming
forward will need to account for other policies and legislation, including that
affecting ecological designations.

The supporting text to policy E5 (Biodiversity) advises that the Council
proposes to bring forward new opportunities for informal recreation to minimise
the impact of the increased population in relation to such designations.
Through seeking contributions, a range of mitigation measures would be
brought forward, including securing access to new areas of land. The scale of
such mitigation would be based on 8 hectares per 1,000 population. This is
also set out within the New Forest Interim Mitigation Framework, through which
relevant applicants can provide their own mitigation measures, or contribution
towards off-site mitigation measures.

A number of Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspaces (SANG) have already
been secured through planning permissions, or are indicated in conjunction
with the allocation of sites. These relate to land in Romsey, North Baddesley,
and Nursling and Rownhams. The SANG proposed through this application will
therefore form part of a network of such provisions within the southern part of
Test Valley all designed to mitigate the impact an expanded population will
have on the New Forest area. While the secured and allocated SANG sites are
located close to some of the larger settlements, the proposed SANG is close to
a number of the more rural villages in the south west of the Borough. It is also
approximately the same distance to the proposed SANG from the western
edge of Romsey as to the nearest public car parks within the New Forest.
Therefore, the location of the proposed SANG will complement the network of
secured and allocated SANG sites and also be accessible to more rural
communities in which windfall developments have contributed towards off-site
mitigation measures through the Interim Mitigation Framework.

The physical characteristics of SANG and the factors that make them attractive
to users, rather than the New Forest, also tend to require a countryside
location outside the defined settlement boundaries. They should be natural or
semi-natural spaces, ideally including a mix of habitat types, offering a tranquil
space for recreation, ideally avoiding urban intrusions. There are also benefits
from access to the wider public right of way network. The application site
provides all these characteristics, including a public right of way located on the
opposite site of Mill Lane, in close proximity to the site access.

Page 40



8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Taking the characteristics of SANG and the role the site would play as part of a
wider network of such provisions in southern Test Valley, it is considered that
the proposal satisfies criterion b) of COM2.

The proposal reflects the social and environment objectives of sustainable
development (paragraph 8) in the NPPF around protecting the environment
and facilitating the delivery of sufficient homes. It also is consistent with
paragraph 175, criterion d) of the NPPF which indicates that ‘development
whose primary objective is to conserve or enhance biodiversity should be
supported’.

Character and appearance

The application site off Mill lane is located approximately 300 metres from the
A27 (Salisbury Road). The character of the approach to the site along Mill
Lane is a mix of domestic fences and gates, flint and brick walls, conifer and
native hedgerows, agricultural buildings and domestic properties with
outbuildings. A large fruit farm operation is located to the north of the site with
poly tunnels covering approximately 5 hectares.

The boundary of the site is dominated by woodland and scrub. A line of native
scrub and trees run alongside Mill Lane with the only direct view into the site at
the existing site entrance. To the south the boundary is dominated by alder
carr woodland scattered scrub. Views into the site from residential properties
on Wellow Wood Road are obscured by scrub, mature trees and private
boundary features including laurel hedging. To the north blackthorn scrub and
mature oak trees provide a visual barrier to the fruit farm infrastructure.

A number of changes to the site are being proposed as part of the change of
use application from agriculture (grassland management) to recreation space.
The proposal would see the construction of a gravel car park measuring
approximately 300 m2 to accommodate 12 parking spaces (see appendix 4).
The existing galvanised field entrance gate will be retained and a vehicle
height barrier painted black will be installed to the rear of this gate. The car
park will be set back from Mill Lane by approximately 12 metres and the height
barrier by 5 metres. Vehicle movements within the car park will be contained
by a low level earth bund which will be sown with an amenity grass mix. The
bund was chosen to mirror similar car park layouts in the New Forest and
provides a less formal appearance than timber bollards. The bund will also be
screened from inside the space using a native hedge mix. An information
board detailing walks around the site and ecological information will be located
at the car park. A number of waste bins will be located around the site,
positioned to be fully functional but unobtrusive.

The boundary of the site will be secured with a combination of stock fencing
and timber post and rail fencing, with galvanised steel gates. The materials
have been chosen to mirror the materials used on the adjacent agricultural
holdings. Access around the site will be via mown grass paths and where
required to traverse wetter sections of land short timber bridges and
boardwalks.

Page 41



8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

It is considered that this new infrastructure would have negligible effect on the
character and appearance of the site. The existing vegetation on all
boundaries will act as a visual barrier to the new car park, and materials have
been chosen to mirror those of the surrounding farmed landscape. Therefore,
the proposal is considered to comply with policies E1 and E2 of the Revised
Local Plan. In addition, the proposal would not conflict with any of the guidance
notes within the Sherfield English Village Design Statement. Further
information has been submitted with regards a hard and soft landscaping
specification and maintenance. This is currently under review with the
Landscape Officer and an update will be provided.

Trees

The proposed development would not create any significant impacts on the
trees on site and the Tree Officer has no objection to the proposals as such the
development is considered to be in accordance with policy E2 which seeks to
preserve existing landscape features.

Ecology

Natural England supports this application to provide a new area of land for
publicly accessible greenspace. The change of use is welcomed at this site as
part of the council’s strategy to mitigate recreational disturbance on the
designated sites within the New Forest. The provision of suitable alternative
natural greenspace and the proposed management of this site, as set out in
the submitted plans, would attract people away from the New Forest Special
Protection Area (SPA), reducing pressure on it and being of benefit to the
conservation objectives for the designated site.

Comments from HCC Ecology are awaited and will be included in the update
paper.

Impact on neighbouring properties

Concern has been raised about security for neighbouring residential properties
the rear gardens of which back on to the application site on the southern
boundary. The fence along the southern boundary has been stepped back into
the site to keep access away from neighbouring properties to the south, and
also to make management of this part of the site easier. The position of the
fencing leaves an approximate buffer within the Mill Lane site of 20 metres
(taken from the fence to the stream which forms the southern boundary). The
private properties to the south of the stream which are located in Wellow Wood
Road, are separated by approximately 50 metres of what appears to be fields
(it is appreciated that private use by the householders of these field will vary)
before the boundary of what appears to private gardens to each of the houses.

The purpose of the SANG is to provide a space for people to walk dogs off a
lead and the site will be advertised for this purpose. There is no evidence to
suggest any significant problems occurring with dogs barking or people
shouting in this countryside setting, and we would simply expect people to
pass/repass along this southern route. Whilst the applicant would not
necessarily preclude ball games, the way the site will be managed with
predominately longer grass with mown paths is not conducive for such an
activity.

Page 42



8.19

8.20

8.21

8.22

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Specifically, compartment 7 (southern boundary) is wet fen type vegetation
which extends above the knee of an average height person (say 5.9ft) so again
ball games would not be feasible.

The fencing proposed would be stock fencing (wire netting with 2 strands of
wire along the top), chosen to keep people and dogs contained within the site
and will mirror the existing agricultural type fencing in the locality. The
applicant is extremely keen to ensure the feel and landscape of the Mill Lane
site changes as little as possible, with the exception of the obvious required
infrastructure of the car park, fencing and bins etc. It has been confirmed that
there is no intention to preclude views across the site and enclose the space.
In light of the above information from the applicant it is not considered that the
change of use of this land to enable the public to take a walk around the area
would create any significant impacts on the adjacent neighbouring properties
either on Wellow Wood Road or Mill Lane. As such the development is
considered to comply with policy LHW4 which seeks to protect amenity.

Impact on highway safety and parking provision

The Highways Officer initially had an objection to the proposals due to lack of
information. Further detail has been submitted and reviewed. In relation to
parking provision Drawing P263/1A now shows provision of 12 parking
spaces. There is no current standard for parking provision for this type of rural
public open space set out in the Test Valley adopted Local Plan. Annex G
(Policy T2) Parking Standards for Community, Leisure and Recreation
Facilities does provide a standard for a number of outdoor facilities including
(golf courses/sports pitches), however these are not applicable and cannot be
used for this purpose.

On this basis the applicant has calculated the number of parking spaces based
on existing sites in the Borough which are relative in use to what is proposed at
Mill Lane. Sites include:

e Stoney Marsh located on the A3057 for access for walking the Test
Way - 10 spaces
e Anton Lakes Andover — 10 spaces

Taking into account the proposed use of the site for dog walking/ walking only,
and no equipped leisure facilities are to be installed, it is anticipated that 12
spaces will be adequate to absorb parking demand to access this space at
peak times. The updated Layout drawing P263/1A shows the proposed
access, internal layout of the car park and visibility splay on Mill Lane. The
parking spaces are standard 2.4m x 4.8m, and the manoeuvring width is 6.2m
(minimum width is 6m). The Highways Officer has confirmed that having
reviewed this information there are now no concerns in this regard.

In terms of visibility, Mill Lane is lightly trafficked therefore from Manual for
Streets the distance X is taken as 2m. A radar speed survey of northbound
traffic, just north of the entrance (where the road is straighter, therefore speeds
faster) shows maximum vehicle speeds of 25mph. A manual speed survey of
vehicles approaching from the south gave a maximum speed of 20mph.

Page 43



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

From Manual for Streets the SSD is therefore 25m (which is where the existing
T Pole is located — see Drawing). The remainder of the hedge will be removed
and verge bank reduce in level to further improve visibility. Drawing P263/2 -
Vehicle Swept Path shows vehicle speeds turning into the entrance at 5 and
10mph. The details provided with regards to the vehicular visibility envelope
achievable is considered acceptable by the Highways Officer. It is considered
appropriate to apply a suitable condition to any planning permission granted
that requires the vehicular visibility splays to be maintained for the lifetime of
the development. Subject to appropriate conditions also ensuring the parking is
laid out and provided it is considered that the development is in accordance
with policies T1 and T2 of the Revised Borough Local Plan 2016.

9.0 CONCLUSION
9.1 The proposal is considered acceptable and in accordance with the development
plan.

10.0 RECOMMENDATION

PERMISSION subject to:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except
in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted
plans numbers:

Layout Plan P263 1 A

Management Compartments

Indicative Path Layouts

Site Plan

Indicative Internal Fence Plan

Height Barrier 41010-0

Detail Swept path P263 2

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning

3. The development shall not be occupied until space has been laid
out and provided for the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles to
enable them to enter and leave the site in a forward gear in
accordance with the approved plan and this space shall thereafter
be reserved for such purposes at all times.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1

4.  Prior to the commencement of development the access shall be
constructed with the visibility splays as detailed on plan P263 1 A
and maintained as such at all times. Within these visibility splays
notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking
and re-enacting that Order) no obstacles, including walls, fences
and vegetation, shall exceed the height of 1 metres above the level
of the existing carriageway at any time.

Page 44



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1

Notes to applicant:

1.

In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has
had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting
solutions.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out and
completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans,
specifications and written particulars for which permission is
hereby granted or which are subsequently submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and in
compliance with any conditions imposed by the Local Planning
Authority.

Page 45



Test V4§ ley Borough Council - Southeyn Area Planning Commijtee - 4 Jun

hamar Cottages

Sherfisld English

“ ¥
0§f"£’

S

S
~\f/ .,
5

<
5%
boetel

°f0
R

>
>)'
by b
%%
bl
5
bolel
5

K

..‘.:: 35
%3 5,‘?"
Jotel:
WX,

-
s

<7

”
<7
o
e
bty

<
2

%

7
5o

52

<

Sack Copsse

Wallow Wood Common

Siorkins Farge v

“ Siteplan Test VO“G! 3

Borough Council

THIS PLOT IS PRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF
THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONARY OFFICE ® CROWN COPYRIGHT

UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT Page 46 19/00795/FULLS
AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS. age

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013




T £92d
A2y oN jalaly

yn*AoB-As|[BAISE) MMM B1IS M
snAob ) jensa)@BuLesubus B3
66.89€ v9¢L0 ¥ed
00089€ #9210 1BL

rve mEm
alysdwey
JBAOpUY
peoy [IyAs
JIouno? ybnolog AsjeA IS8
Jodsues] pue Aaljod Buiuueld

I% |Punod ybnoiog
& ASII0A s3]
..\..ﬁ.zs &18_86 _mwss_n_

61/50/80 UE] 06z1
8leg Ag uneig BJED!

ysiiBug peipays
aueT [N

ueld Jnofe
VD HSITONT a131443HS

k|

Jdhe 2019

ittee - 4

e

ajeq uonduasag | rey

m%m%s | ‘sbupassord 1o 10

uonnoaedd o) pea) kew pue dod Unoiry sabuiyul

udljanpesol pasuoyineun JyBukdon umeiN@ sao

Kisuonag s Aisaley JaH jo Jajjonue) 8y jo Jjeyaq uo

Fenng@RuBUpIQ 8Y) jo ojssiwiad au) Ui [eiajew
FoNES aauBupIQ) Woy pasnpoidal §| dew sy |

rea Pla

<
[122N0D) AunoD)
sfysdwrep] @
(@]

s

Valley Borough Council - S

Em.ww.ev.m payew sadeds Bupyied
[t

*10j0e1U00 AQ Pajasia 8q 0} ‘DgAL
£q paiddns satieq yyfila jeatiqe

SIaljo U
£q 1no paiuen Bujueld pue abpay

ojebaibbe
Jginfue ww G| - 4 |1 pue Buippag
091X Wens | pubosg

00011 Wella] 8]Ixa)0a0)
SUONONISUI SIBINYIBINUELL U)M

a0UBpI0d. U ple| ‘paoldde Jejiwis
10 O anedpog aq o} pub Buired

- S9J0N

WS

N

N\

i,

06:)

V- U0j938 Buifipe 8j@12U00 (G X 0§l
A N N
A

puficag

g[xej089)

aseq qns ¢ adA] wwpoz

UIppag Wwuwge 001 040 —L05°0 oF'L 0570 ++— 040
pug Buined ljseld wWugy
Bunue|d meN
062:1
NY'ld ybiy wgo punq flog

5y = 'y
17 ::.:\}‘ , = u SQ.

Buusaiog
uoneabap x3

[[IQISIA 10} YoBg
163 80 0).80pay MaN
"PaAOWIBI B( 0)38pay X3

O

Ialileq
4BiaH MoN

N\

Sqi93 Ushi4 0G

pajesojal 8q 0}
ajeg) bulsixg

d

fuuaalog
uonejabiap X3

8)Is Wo.j s[elsjew
Ui pawiio} Spung (103

o)l W/ ¢ MaN
0§}
g - g uoljoag
_ ﬂ LLNN 7.
Kepp abeiien Buysxg

mEB Em_@ m__uxsomw
8seq qng | 8dA| wuiggz
95In07) Japulg wuigg
8SIN07) 92BNG WW(E

Page 47

~7




Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

8L02¥380LO0SE (3O

ANFHZONVHEY TWHANZD  CA3Y

woszr  3wos

GISIMYS QIMYT : AB NMYEQ

150 ONINIVIZ TYNOLLIOAY ONY BSIHEVE TT0IH3A
T13ATT MQT WD HILYE ROLLIMELSTY LHOEH

VRN 704 NOISS ik LNCwILA Q10D 38
Lew IS ANY TWLNGILNGD AUDNLS 51 SUEKIG
40 NYO'TND NOESTINGNE JHL

Lxz|,»J04 33 DL S3INVA3 DL TIV 7 S3RLIMATIN

NI UV SNCSHGIEG TV

CETTYY €TIL0 2B 0OTTHr CT9H0 A0

ANGRTRAUE B jupRal
HIPORIEXGE/ MM

N15 LLSON “SioN "PRYISY U voing
‘peoy uelTweH ‘palw weyBuiloN

{ZINYHVTD TVREZLN] | J0IM NATORNX HIIH MINDDZZ s P I ONIAYHA SIHL WML ZTYIS LON 00
0010 :'ONDNQ TELL e »
ELOT S SpAden
d3din®3y 1S0d HOLV1 TYNOLLIaay
dYd ONIXMOO0T IAIZDIY
__OL.OdHL 310H 228 W2
9N 3AIND HYE ONIMD0T =
0201_ Ec.pom X 1V14 0L X 08 8 i e o e 3 (ZLVid3SYE 05T X LVId § X 05T "INy )
1504 SONIK SH'S 002 X 002 50 HOLVI STH'S 021 023
A007Avd 3AIF03H OL
10H 81@ MWD DN XM00T1avd |
ONQT WWQS X 1¥14 QL X 0%
0
ON1X007avd 3IN=03Y g
~__ 01 LO1S SL X 08 MO i P <
08 DG ONTONRIOOT ONOT ( M3IA TIV13Q 335 ) g 2
Wwog X 174 0} X 05 SONTONMOOT HLCE ANNOYY Q13IH ElE
ONDIDOT LV1d ONOT WWQS|E X WQl X 0€ 303Id ¢ i
SUYI50 S0 SRBE0T i £ 2
2 ¥VE ONDID0T g = |3
L — omdolsuve | S B
SNINOOT LY S1 X OF
- NMOHS SY 03073M 2L¥7d Ly
| Emﬁm”m%mﬁwu ONOTWWOEE X IVI4 L X00F
| SHS0SX05 /
== ﬁ\ —
IU A I __“ 3
— S'H'S 08X 0F N =
] 5 ’ ]
(0] % G M
Ll — _ w [ﬂ%
paL (4vaTave 1 OITE
(HLOIM TYNEE1NI] Q0+

5T Ivos INGET ERvid T
—MIATIVLIT
0T3IHS OND{OOT

(HLOM TVEEA0 ) QT ET
NOLLVASTE INOYS

T TT T T
mn

M3 NV

Page 48



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 June 2019

ITEM 9 Scheme of Delegations to Officers

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Portfolio: Corporate)

Recommended:

That the Scheme of Delegations to Officers annexed to the report to Annual
Council, in so far as it applies to the powers and duties of the Southern Area
Planning Committee, be approved.

SUMMARY:

e The purpose of the report is to approve the Council’s Scheme of Delegations to
Officers as amended

1 Background

1.1  The Scheme of Delegations to Officers is approved each year in accordance with
the Constitution by Annual Council, the Cabinet and relevant Committees.

2 Resource Implications
2.1 None
3 Issues

3.1  During the course of the year since the last Annual Council changes have
occurred to the Scheme of Delegations to Officers and new delegations to
Officers have been made as the need has arisen over time. These changes have
been incorporated into the Scheme in the Annex to the report to Annual Council.

Background Papers (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

None

Confidentiality

It is considered that this report does not contain exempt information within the
meaning of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and
can be made public.

No of Annexes: |0 File Ref: N/A
(Portfolio: Corporate) Councillor Preston

Officer: Karen Dunn Ext: 8401
Report to: Southern Area Planning Committee | Date: |4 June 2019

Page 49




	Agenda
	6 Information Notes
	7 18/03235/FULLS - 10.12.2018
	REFERENCE
	DSP_APPLICATION_TYPE
	DATE_REGISTERED
	DSP_NAME
	DESCRIPTIVE_LOCATION
	PROPOSAL
	DSP_COF
	DATE_PUB_EXPIRY
	18_03235_FULLS SAPC Plan 1
	18_03235_FULLS SAPC Plan 2
	18_03235_FULLS SAPC Plan 3
	18_03235_FULLS SAPC Plan 4
	18_03235_FULLS SAPC Plan 5
	18_03235_FULLS SAPC Plan 6
	18_03235_FULLS SAPC Plan 7
	18_03235_FULLS SAPC Plan 8
	18_03235_FULLS SAPC Plan 9
	18_03235_FULLS SAPC Plan 10
	Sheets and Views
	104



	8 19/00795/FULLS - 28.03.2019
	REFERENCE
	DSP_APPLICATION_TYPE
	DATE_REGISTERED
	DSP_NAME
	DESCRIPTIVE_LOCATION
	PROPOSAL
	DSP_COF
	DATE_PUB_EXPIRY
	19_00795_FULLS SAPC Plan 1
	19_00795_FULLS SAPC Plan 2
	19_00795_FULLS SAPC Plan 3

	9 Scheme of Delegations to Officers
	Text1


